


The ethics of care is a long-lasting 
commitment and we strongly believe 
that it revolves around relationships that 
generate responsibilities. From care of 
our people to the care of our business 
partners, contribution to the community’s 
well being and that of the country, it 
gives us the pride of being a part of this 
great nation. We would like to share in 
our annual report this year, the steps we 
have taken to move towards a brighter 
tomorrow through our core concepts, 
our products and our operations.

Caring
at  the  core
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IMC was incorporated in 1989 as a joint venture company between certain House of 
Habib Companies, Toyota Motor Corporation and Toyota Tsusho Corporation. The 
Company manufactures and markets Toyota brand vehicles in Pakistan. The main 
product offerings include several variants of the flagship ‘Corolla’ in the passenger cars 
category, ‘Hilux’ in the light commercial vehicles segment and ‘Fortuner’ Sports Utility 
Vehicle.

The manufacturing facility and offices are located at a 105 acre site in Port Qasim, 
Karachi, while the product is delivered to end customers nationwide through a strong 
network of 45 independent 3S Dealerships spread across the country.

In its 27 years since inception, IMC has sold more than 750,000 CBU/CKD vehicles and 
has demonstrated impressive growth, in terms of volumetric increase from a modest 
beginning of 20 vehicles per day production in 1993 to 240 units daily at present through 
the development of human talent embracing the ‘Toyota Way’ of quality and lean 
manufacturing. Over the years, IMC has made large scale investments in enhancing its 
own capacity and in meeting customer requirements for new products. Today, Corolla 
is the largest selling automotive brand model in Pakistan and it also has the distinction 
of being # 1 in Toyota’s Asian market.

The Company invests heavily in training its 2,800 plus workforce of team members and 
management employees and creating a culture of high performing empowered teams 
working seamlessly across processes in search of quality and continuous improvement. 
The core values of the Company encourage employees to pursue high standards of 
business ethics and safety; communicating candidly by giving bad news first and to 
respect people. The bi-annual TMC morale surveys show that employees rate IMC high 
on work environment and level of job satisfaction.

The Company has played a major role in the development of the entire value chain of 
the local auto industry and is proud to have contributed in poverty alleviation at the 
grass root level by nurturing localization that has directly created thousands of job 
opportunities and transferred technology to over 60 vendors supplying parts. IMC is 
also a major tax payer and significant contributor to the GOP Exchequer.

Corporate Profile
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“To be the most respected and successful enterprise, 
delighting customers with a wide range of products 
and solutions in the automobile industry with the best 
people and the best technology.”

Vision

Mission
IMC’s Mission is reflected in the Company’s slogan

Action, Commitment and Teamwork to 
become # 1 in Pakistan

• World class production quality
• Achieving the ultimate goal of complete customer satisfaction
• Being seen as the best employer
• Fostering the spirit of teamwork
• Inculcating ethical and honest practices

Core Values

1Act #
Action, 

Commitment, 
Teamwork

Respect & Corporate Image

Best Employer

Profitability

Production & Sales

Customer Satisfaction

Quality & Safety
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At IMC, we provide our employees 
with a range of tools, services and 
environment to help preserve their work-
life balance. Our 2,800 plus employees 
are engaged in training and developing 
people through local and international 
institutions, with 1.8 million man-
hours achieved through skill training. 
Last year, we sent our employees to 
Harvard, Wharton and INSEAD to add 
value to their knowledge and skills. Our 
management outlook is merit-based. It 
works towards ensuring equality in the 
workplace and developing solutions to 
guarantee a satisfactory fit between the 
multiple roles in a person’s life.

Caring
for our people
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Guiding Principles
Toyota

President, Toyota Motor Corporation
Akio Toyoda
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Preamble 

We, Toyota Motor Corporation and our subsidiaries, take 
initiative to contribute to harmonious and sustainable 
development of society and the earth through all business 
activities that we carry out in each country and region, 
based on our Principles. We comply with local, national 
and international laws and regulations as well as the 
spirit thereof and we conduct our business operations 
with honesty and integrity. In order to contribute to 
sustainable development, we believe that management 
interacting with its stakeholders as described below is of 
considerable importance, and we will endeavor to build 
and maintain sound relationships with our stakeholders 
through open and fair communication. We expect our 
business partners to support this initiative and act in 
accordance with it.

Customers

• Based on our philosophy of “Customer First,” we 
develop and provide innovative, safe and outstanding 
high quality products and services that meet a wide 
variety of customers’ demands to enrich the lives of 
people around the world. (Guiding Principles 3 and 4)

• We will endeavor to protect the personal information 
of customers and everyone else we are engaged in 
business with, in accordance with the letter and spirit 
of each country’s privacy laws. (Guiding Principles 1)

Employees

• We respect our employees and believe that the 
success of our business is led by each individual’s 
creativity and good teamwork. We stimulate personal 
growth for our employees. (Guiding Principles 5)

• We support equal employment opportunities, 
diversity and inclusion for our employees and do not 
discriminate against them. (Guiding Principles 5)

• We strive to provide fair working conditions and to 
maintain a safe and healthy working environment for 
all our employee. (Guiding Principles 5)

• We respect and honor the human rights of people 
involved in our business and, in particular, do not use 
or tolerate any form of forced or child labor. (Guiding 
Principles 5)

• Through communication and dialogue with our 
employees, we build and share the value “Mutual 
Trust and Mutual Responsibility” and work together 
for the success of our employees and the company.

• We recognize our employees’ right to freely associate, 
or not to associate, complying with the laws of the 
countries in which we operate. (Guiding Principles 5)

• Management of each company takes leadership 
in fostering a corporate culture, and implementing 
policies, that promote ethical behavior. (Guiding 
Principles 1 and 5)

Business Partners 

• We respect our business partners such as suppliers 
and dealers and work with them through long-term 
relationships to realize mutual growth based on 
mutual trust. (Guiding Principles 7)

• Whenever we seek a new business partner, we 
are open to any and all candidates, regardless of 
nationality or size, and evaluate them based on their 
overall strengths. (Guiding Principles 7)

• We maintain fair and free competition in accordance 
with the letter and spirit of each country’s competition 
laws. (Guiding Principles 1 and 7)

Shareholders

• We strive to enhance corporate value while achieving 
a stable and long-term growth for the benefit of our 
shareholders. (Guiding Principles 6)

• We provide our shareholders and investors with 
timely and fair disclosure on our operating results and 
financial condition. (Guiding Principles 1 and 6)

Global Society/Local Communities

Environment

We aim for growth that is in harmony with the environment 
by seeking to minimize the environmental impact of 
our business operations, such as by working to reduce 
the effect of our vehicles and operations on climate 
change and biodiversity. We strive to develop, establish 
and promote technologies enabling the environment 
and economy to coexist harmoniously, and to 
build close and cooperative relationships with 
a wide spectrum of individuals and organizations involved 
in environmental preservation. (Guiding Principles 3)

Community

• We implement our philosophy of “respect for people” 
by honoring the culture, customs, history and laws of 
each country. (Guiding Principles 2)

• We constantly search for safer, cleaner and superior 
technology that satisfies the evolving needs of society 
for sustainable mobility. (Guiding Principles 3 and 4)

• We do not tolerate bribery of or by any business 
partner, government agency or public authority 
and maintain honest and fair relationships with 
government agencies and public authorities. (Guiding 
Principles 1)

Social contribution

• Wherever we do business, we actively promote 
and engage, both individually and with partners, in 
social contribution activities that help strengthen 
communities and contribute to the enrichment of 
society. (Guiding Principles 2)

Contribution Towards Sustainable Development

CSR Policy
Toyota Motor Corporation
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•  Following our “Customer 
First” philosophy in 
manufacturing and 
providing high quality 
vehicles and services 
that meet the needs of 
Pakistani customers.

•  Enhancing the quality and 
reach of our 3S Dealership 
Network.

•  Employing customer 
insight and feedback for 
continuous corporate 
renewal, including product 
development, improving 
service and customer care.

Achieving Market 
Leadership by Delivering 
Value to Customers •  Maximizing QRD (Quality, 

Reliability and Durability) by 
built-in engineering.

•  Transferring technology and 
promoting indigenization at 
IMC and its Vendors.

•  Raising the bar in all support 
functions to meet Toyota 
Global Standards.

Bringing Toyota Quality
to Pakistan

•  Fostering a Kaizen culture 
and mindset at IMC, its 
Dealers and Vendors.

•  Implementing Toyota 
Production System.

•  Removing waste in all areas 
and operating in the lowest 
cost quartile of the industry.

Optimizing Cost by 
Kaizen

Objectives
Strategic
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•  Treating employees as the most 
important sustainable competitive 
resource.

• Providing a continuous learning 
environment that promotes 
individual creativity and 
teamwork.

• Supporting equal employment 
opportunities, diversity and 
inclusion without discrimination.

•  Building competitive value 
through mutual trust and mutual 
responsibility between the Indus 
Team and the Company.

Respecting our people

Become a Good Corporate Citizen

•  Following ethical business practices 
and the laws of the land.

•  Engaging in philanthropic and social 
activities that contribute to the 
enrichment of the Pakistani society, 
especially in areas that are strategic 
to both societal and business 
needs e.g. road safety, technical 
education, environment protection, 
etc.

•  Enhancing corporate value and 
respect while achieving a stable and 
long term growth for the benefit of 
our shareholders.
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Toshiya Azuma
Vice Chairman

Ali S. Habib
Chairman

Directors
Board of

Ali S. Habib is the Chairman of 
Indus Motor Company Limited 
and is also the Founding Director 
of the Company. He also serves 
as a Member on the board of 
directors of Thal Limited, Shabbir 
Tiles & Ceramics Limited and Habib 
Metropolitan Bank Limited.

He is a graduate in Mechanical 
Engineering from the University of 
Minnesota, USA. He has attended 
the PMD Program at Harvard 
University.

Toshiya Azuma has been appointed 
as a Director on the Board and 
Vice Chairman of Indus Motor 
Company Limited with effect from 
January 2016. He has been serving 
at Toyota Motor Corporation for 
over 29 years and has worked 
in different capacities. He has 
also served as Assistant Vice 
President, Purchasing Division and 
Vice President, Marketing Division 
for Toyota Motor Philippines 
Corporation (TMP).

He has completed his Bachelor’s 
degree in Law from Kobe University, 
Japan.

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali
Chief Executive

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali was 
appointed as Chief Executive 
Officer in January 2017. He has 
been with the Company since 
October 2000 and has served in 
key roles in various departments, 
owing to which he has acquired 
rich experience in end to end 
management of the company 
operations.

He is a fellow member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan and has attended the 
Advance Management Program 
at Harvard University and the 
Accelerated Management Program 
at Wharton School of Business, 
USA.
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Azam Faruque
Independent Director

Azam Faruque was elected as a 
Director of the Company in October 
2014. He is a director and CEO 
of Cherat Cement Co. Limited, 
a Ghulam Faruque Group (GFG) 
company. Apart from the 25 years 
he has spent in the cement industry 
and other GFG businesses, he has 
served as a member on the boards 
of various public and private sector 
institutions. Currently he is a director 
of International Industries Limited, 
Madian Hydro Power Limited, 
Atlas Battery Limited, Faruque (Pvt) 
Limited, and Greaves Pakistan (Pvt) 
Limited.

He is an Electrical Engineering and 
Computer Science graduate from 
Princeton University USA, and 
has also completed his MBA with 
High Honors from the University of 
Chicago.

Farhad Zulficar
Director

Farhad Zulficar is the Founding 
Director of Indus Motor Company 
Limited. He was the first Managing 
Director of the Company from 1989 
to 2001 and has also served as 
Director on various listed and private 
companies.

He is a commerce graduate from 
the University of Karachi.
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Directors
Board of

Mohamedali R. Habib
Director

Mohamedali R. Habib is the 
Founding Director of Indus Motor 
Company Limited. He has been 
an Executive Director of Habib 
Metropolitan Bank Limited since 
2004 and currently serves as 
the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of the Bank. He also 
serves as a Member on the 
Board of Thal Limited and Habib 
Insurance Company Limited. He 
was appointed as Joint-President 
& Division Head (Asia) & Member 
of General Management of Habib 
Bank AG Zurich in 2011.

He has a graduate degree in 
Business Management – Finance 
from Clark University, USA.

Hiroyuki Fukui
Director

Hiroyuki Fukui was appointed as a 
Director of Indus Motor Company 
Limited in May 2016. Currently 
he is serving as the President of 
Toyota-Astra Motor, Toyota Motor 
Asia Pacific and Managing Officer 
of Toyota Motor Corporation. He is 
presently director on the boards of 
various Toyota Group companies in 
countries around the globe.

He graduated from Kyoto 
University, Japan.

Sadatoshi Kashihara
Director

Sadatoshi Kashihara was 
appointed as Director of Indus 
Motor Company Limited in January 
2017 and also serves as Senior 
Director Manufacturing. He has 
been with Toyota Group since 
1990 during which time he held 
various senior executive positions. 
He has vast experience in the areas 
of Production, Plant Engineering at 
various Toyota plants in the world.

He is a graduate from the Miyazaki 
University, Japan.
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Masato Yamanami
Director

Masato Yamanami was appointed 
as Director of Indus Motor 
Company Limited in June 2015. He 
has been associated with Toyota 
Motor Corporation from 1981 to 
2013, during which time he has 
held various senior positions. He 
joined Toyota Tsusho Corporation 
in January 2014 as a member of 
Management team. He is presently 
director on the boards of various 
Toyota Group companies in 
countries around the globe.

He is a graduate from Faculty of 
Political Science and Economics 
from Waseda University, Japan.

Parvez Ghias
Director

Parvez Ghias served as Chief 
Executive of the Company from 
2005 to 2016. After stepping 
down as Chief Executive, he has 
continued as a Director on the 
Board. Prior to joining the Company, 
he was the Vice President and CFO 
at Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited 
and served as a Member of the 
Board of Directors. He also serves 
as an independent director on the 
boards of Standard Chartered 
Bank (Pakistan) Limited, Dawood 
Hercules Corporation Limited and 
Shell Pakistan Limited.

He is a fellow of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in England 
& Wales and holds a Bachelors 
Degree in Economics and Statistics.



We are engaged deeply with the 
principles of caring economics and we 
build meaningful connections through 
our leaders. This is how we increase the 
confidence of our people in the vital area 
of the national economy. This enables 
us to provide a forward momentum to 
the thousands of people employed at 
our plant as well as at our vendors and 
45 dealerships across the country. This 
assisted us in contributing Rs. 39 billion 
to the national exchequer.

Caring
for the economy
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Information
Company

Bankers
Bank Alfalah Limited
Bank Al-Habib Limited
Citibank N.A.
Habib Bank Limited
Habib Metro Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Limited
United Bank Limited

Auditors
A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
State Life Building No. 1-C,
I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

Legal Advisors
A.K. Brohi & Company
Mansoor Ahmed Khan & Co.
Mahmud & Co.
Sayeed & Sayeed

Share Registrar
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, 
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, 
Karachi-74400.
Tel:     0800-23275
UAN:  111-111-500
Email: info@cdcpak.com 

Factory / Registered Office
Plot No. N.W.Z/1/P-1, Port Qasim Authority, 
Bin Qasim , Karachi.
Phone: (PABX) (92-21) 34720041-48
            (UAN)  (92-21) 111-TOYOTA (869-682) 
Fax:                 (92-21) 34720056  
Website:          www.toyota-indus.com

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Mohammad Ibadullah

Company Secretary
Mr. Muhammad Arif Anzer

Head of Internal Audit
Mr. Azam Khan

Board Audit Committee Members
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib (Chairman)
Mr. Farhad Zulficar
Mr. Azam Faruque
Mr. Hiroyuki Fukui
Mr. Masato Yamanami
Mr. Azam Khan (Secretary)

Board Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee Members
Mr. Ali S. Habib (Chairman)
Mr. Farhad Zulficar
Mr. Parvez Ghias
Mr. Toshiya Azuma
Mr. Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali 
Mr. Qaiser Abbas (Secretary)

Board Ethics Committee Members
Mr. Farhad Zulficar (Chairman)
Mr. Parvez Ghias
Mr. Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali
Mr. Muhammad Arif Anzer (Secretary)
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IMC’s Basic Approach to Corporate Governance

IMC has a range of long-standing in-house 
committees responsible for monitoring and 
discussing management and corporate activities 
from viewpoints of various stakeholders to make 
prompt decisions for developing strategies, speed 
up operation while ensuring heightened transparency 
and the fulfillment of social obligations. IMC has a 
unique corporate culture that places emphasis on 
problem solving and preventative measures in line 
with Toyota Global Standards.

Basic Concept of Compliance

IMC follows the guiding principles of Toyota and 
not only complies with local laws and regulations, 
but also meets social norms, corporate ethics 
and expectations of various stakeholders. IMC 
undertakes open and fair corporate activities to meet 
local standards a well as Toyota Global Standards. 
The Audit Committee consists of four non-Executive 
Directors and one independant Director.

Board Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee

The Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee 
of the Board. It recommends human resource 
management policies to the Board. It also 
recommends selection, evaluation, compensation 
and the succession plan of the CEO and Senior 
Management employees who directly report to 
the CEO. The Committee consists of three Non-
Executive Directors, one Executive Director and the 
CEO.

Board Ethics Committee

The Committee has the responsibility of overseeing 
ethical policies and compliance by the Company. 
It provides expeditious actions on disclosures of 
wrongdoing. The Ethics Committee also reviews 
and investigates incidents of whistle-blowing. The 
Committee consists of the CEO and two Non-
Executive Directors.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee assists the Board in 
fulfilling its oversight responsibility for the investment 
in assets of the company. It evaluates the capital 

expenditures required to be made and recommends 
the same to the Board for approval. The Committee 
is also responsible for formulating the overall policies 
for investment in fixed assets, subject to approval 
by the Board, and establishing investment guidelines 
in furtherance of those policies. The Committee 
consists of the CEO, two Directors, the CFO and 
Secretary.

Marketing Technical Co-ordination Committee

Marketing Technical Co-ordination Committee 
is a management committee responsible for 
synchronization between the marketing and technical 
departments. The committee also controls new 
products or minor model specification changes and 
schedules. The Committee is chaired by the CEO 
every month and representatives from marketing 
and technical departments attend the meeting.

ACT #1 Management Committee

The ACT #1 Management Committee is responsible 
for the monitoring of organizational KPIs and 
stewardship of financial performance every 
month. It also reviews departmental targets and 
accomplishments achieved during the month. In 
addition ACT #1 reviews government regulatory 
affairs including macro-economic situations which 
results in formation of the Company’s strategy and 
risk management policies. The meeting is headed 
by the Chairman with representation from all 
departments.

Safety, Health and Environment Committee

The Committee meets on a monthly basis and 
keeps a close eye on company wide Safety, Health 
and Environment (S.H.E) statistics, KPI trends, 
relevant local laws compliance, promulgating drive 
and focus on S.H.E. right from the top; enabling 
Management to have a first hand feel of S.H.E issues 
prevailing on the shop floor and ways to resolve 
them via efficient and swift decision-making. The 
S.H.E Committee, chaired by the CEO, formulates 
the overall policies and S.H.E framework for 
the company.

20

Corporate 
Governance
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This is an important pillar of our work. 
Capacity-building is a customer-focused 
strategy that requires higher levels 
of integration. 60% of the Corolla is 
localized with latest high tech parts. This 
includes high quality chrome plating, 
LED type headlamps and LIN type 
alternator assembly.

Caring
for development
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Information
Shareholder

Factory / Registered Office
Plot No. N.W.Z/1/P-1, Port Qasim Authority, 
Bin Qasim , Karachi.
PABX: (92-21) 34720041-48
Fax:     (92-21) 34720056  

Share Registrar
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, 
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, 
Karachi-74400.
Tel:    0800-23275
UAN: 111-111-500
Email: info@cdcpak.com

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at 9:30 a.m. on October 6, 2017 at the Institute of Chartered Accounts 
of Pakistan, Karachi.

Shareholders as on September 29, 2017 are encouraged to participant and vote. 

Any shareholder may appoint a proxy to vote on his or her behalf. Proxies must be deposited with the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. 
 

Ownership
On June 30, 2017 there were 3,891 shareholders on record of the Company’s ordinary shares.

Dividend Payment
The proposal of the Board of Directors for dividend payment will be considered at the Annual General Meeting. 
The dividend warrants will be sent to persons listed in the register of members on September 29, 2017. 
Income Tax and Zakat will be deducted in accordance with the prevailing regulations.



Indus Motor Company Ltd.

25Annual Report 2017

1992 19961994 199819931993 19971995 1999 2000 2002 20082004 20102006 20122001 2003 20092005 20112007 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

INDU Vs PSX/KSE 100 (1992 - 2017)
As at June 30th

Share Prices and Volumes 2016-17

Pakistan Stock
Exchange

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

Price in Rupees

High
1522.00
1710.00
1860.05
2110.00

Low
935.00
1470.00
1570.00
1616.51

Daily
Average

Volume
45.041
51,265
33,916
53,982

INDU
PSX/KSE 100 index

INDU

PSX

Re
la

tiv
e 

In
de

x

Listing on Stock Exchanges
Indus Motor Company Limited equity shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Stock Code
The stock code for dealer in equity shares of Indus Motor Company Limited at PSX is INDU.
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Highlights
Operating

112.3
108.8

Net Revenues (Rs. in billion) (Units)

(Units)

2017
2016

59,945
 64,096 

Vehicle Production

2017
2016

 60,586 
 64,584

Vehicle Sales

2017

2016
165.4
 145.7

Earnings Per Share (Rs.)

2017
2016

2017 2016

Profit after Tax Rs in billion  13.0  11.5 

Annual Cash Dividend Per Share Rs  115.0  100.0 

Shareholders’ Equity Rs in billion  31.2  27.6 

Contribution to National Exchequer Rs in billion  39.0  37.3 

Manpower No. of employees  2,849  2,765 

Year ended June 30
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Summary
Financial

% Change Year ended June 30

For The Year:
2017 Vs 

2016 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Units sold -6%  60,586  64,584  57,387  34,470  38,517  55,060 

Net revenues Rs in billion 3%  112.3  108.8  96.5  57.1  63.8  77.0 

Profit before tax Rs in billion 10%  19.1  17.4  14.1  5.0  4.9  6.3 

Profit after tax Rs in billion 13%  13.0  11.5  9.1  3.9  3.4  4.3 

Return on equity Percentage 1%  41.7  41.5  37.9  19.4  19.0  25.3 

Per Share Data:

Earnings (EPS)  Rs 13%  165.4  145.7  115.9  49.3  42.7  54.7 

Cash dividends Rs 15%  115.0  100.0  80.0  29.5  25.0  32.0 

Shareholders’ equity Rs 13%  396.9  351.5  305.8  253.4  225.1  216.5 

At Year-End:

Total assets Rs in billion 11%  63.9  57.5  50.4  26.1  25.1  27.6 

Shareholders’ equity Rs in billion 13%  31.20  27.63  24.04  19.92  17.69  17.01 

Share Performance (June 30):

Price per share Rs 91%  1,793.6  939.5  1,249.0  537.9  311.0  245.1 

Market capitalization Rs in billion 91%  141.0  73.8  98.2  42.3  24.4  19.3 

Net Revenues Net Income / ROE EPS / Dividend per share

77.0

63.8
57.1

96.5

 108.8 112.3
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We encourage our people to make 
personal connections within the 
communities they work in. This is 
how we promote empathy, honesty 
and transparency. Besides producing 
cars, we are involved in several 
sectors from health to education 
to community development. This is 
why CSR is of prime importance at 
IMC. Our various programs aimed at 
uplifting the community are focused 
at improving lives in a number of 
villages surrounding our vicinity.

Caring
for community 
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

BALANCE SHEET ----------------------- (Rs in million) -------------------------- ---------------------- (Percentage) ------------------------
Property, plant and equipment  6,258  4,919  5,184  6,032  2,742  3,472  9.80  8.55  10.29  23.10  10.92  12.59 

Intangibles  88  19  10  1  -    1  0.14  0.03  0.02  0.00  -    0.00 

Long-term loans and advances  9  4  11  29  131  6  0.01  0.01  0.02  0.11  0.52  0.02 

Long-term investments  -    5,006  4,955  -    -    -    -    8.70  9.83  -    -    -   

Long-term deposits  9  10  10  10  10  8  0.01  0.02  0.02  0.04  0.04  0.03 

Deferred taxation  74  199  5  -    34  -    0.12  0.35  0.01  -    0.14  -   

Stores and spares  204  154  179  142  154  178  0.32  0.27  0.35  0.54  0.61  0.65 

Stock-in-trade  9,318  7,785  6,150  4,469  7,883  7,530  14.59  13.53  12.20  17.12  31.40  27.31 

Trade debts  759  1,132  448  1,737  1,383  1,460  1.19  1.97  0.89  6.65  5.51  5.29 

Loans and advances  1,653  1,125  1,221  1,006  1,558  945  2.59  1.96  2.42  3.85  6.21  3.43 

Short-term prepayments  21  45  19  15  11  21  0.03  0.08  0.04  0.06  0.04  0.08 

Accrued return  376  513  419  87  12  45  0.59  0.89  0.83  0.33  0.05  0.16 

Other receivables  402  191  168  176  163  448  0.63  0.33  0.33  0.67  0.65  1.62 

Short-term Investments  41,488  33,697  26,257  9,121  6,698  9,691  64.95  58.57  52.10  34.93  26.68  35.14 

Taxation - payment less provision  -    -    -    1,216  131  -    -    -    -    4.66  0.52  -   

Cash and bank balances  3,221  2,738  5,365  2,068  4,195  3,771  5.04  4.76  10.65  7.92  16.71  13.67 

Total Assets  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  25,106  27,576  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00 

 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital  786  786  786  786  786  786  1.23  1.37  1.56  3.01  3.13  2.85 

Reserves  30,411  26,844  23,250  19,130  16,907  16,228  47.61  46.65  46.13  73.26  67.34  58.85 

Shareholders' Equity  31,197  27,630  24,036  19,916  17,693  17,014  48.84  48.02  47.69  76.27  70.47  61.70 

Deferred taxation  -    -    -    219  -    166  -    -    -    0.84  -    0.60 

Deferred Revenue  4  -    -    -    -    -    0.01  -    -    -    -    -   

Trade, other payables and provisions  9,683  10,035  9,181  4,430  6,014  6,512  15.16  17.44  18.22  16.97  23.95  23.61 

Advances from customers and dealers  22,189  19,127  16,193  1,546  1,399  3,824  34.74  33.24  32.13  5.92  5.57  13.87 

Taxation - provision less payment  807  745  990  -    -    60  1.26  1.29  1.96  -    -    0.22 

Total Equity and Liabilities  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  25,106  27,576  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net Sales  112,272  108,758  96,516  57,064  63,829  76,963  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00  100.00 

Cost of sales  92,450  91,027  82,272  51,270  57,972  70,401  82.34  83.70  85.24  89.85  90.82  91.47 

Gross profit  19,822  17,731  14,244  5,794  5,857  6,562  17.66  16.30  14.76  10.15  9.18  8.53 

Distribution costs  1,228  1,061  996  794  814  820  1.09  0.98  1.03  1.39  1.28  1.07 

Administrative expenses  1,053  931  799  635  644  628  0.94  0.86  0.83  1.11  1.01  0.82 

Other operating expenses  177  144  119  52  66  45  0.16  0.13  0.12  0.09  0.10  0.06 

WPPF and WWF  1,418  1,285  1,052  372  370  471  1.26  1.18  1.09  0.65  0.58  0.61 

Operating income  3,593  3,164  2,907  1,113  1,038  1,776  3.20  2.91  3.01  1.95  1.63  2.31 

Finance costs  398  77  52  38  31  61  0.35  0.07  0.05  0.07  0.05  0.08 

Profit before taxation  19,141  17,397  14,133  5,016  4,970  6,313  17.05  16.00  14.64  8.79  7.79  8.20 

Taxation  6,140  5,942  5,022  1,143  1,612  2,010  5.47  5.46  5.20  2.00  2.53  2.61 

Profit after taxation  13,001  11,455  9,110  3,873  3,358  4,303  11.58  10.54  9.44  6.79  5.26  5.59 

Analysis
Vertical
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2017 vs 
2016

2016 vs 
2015

2015 vs 
2014

2014 vs 
2013

2013 vs 
2012

BALANCE SHEET ----------------------- (Rs in million) -------------------------- ---------------------- (Percentage) ------------------------
Property, plant and equipment  6,258  4,919  5,184  6,032  2,742  3,472  27.22  (5.11)  (14.07)  119.99  (21.02)

Intangibles  88  19  10  1  -    1  356.17  98.32  872.70  -    (100.00)

Long-term loans and advances  9  4  11  29  131  6  137.22  (65.81)  (62.25)  (77.62)  2,088.95 

Long-term investments  -    5,006  4,955  -    -    -    (100.00)  1.03  -    -    -   

Long-term deposits  9  10  10  10  10  8  (9.53)  2.91  -    -    20.84 

Deferred taxation  74  199  5  -    34  -    (62.74)  3,651.10  102.42  (737.48)  120.69 

Stores and spares  204  154  179  142  154  178  32.85  (14.02)  26.08  (7.82)  (13.67)

Stock-in-trade  9,318  7,785  6,150  4,469  7,883  7,530  19.69  26.58  37.61  (43.30)  4.69 

Trade debts  759  1,132  448  1,737  1,383  1,460  (32.93)  152.75  (74.23)  25.64  (5.29)

Loans and advances  1,653  1,125  1,221  1,006  1,558  945  46.87  (7.79)  21.33  (35.43)  64.86 

Short-term prepayments  21  45  19  15  11  21  (53.87)  140.60  26.62  38.36  (48.58)

Accrued return  376  513  419  87  12  45  (26.76)  22.57  379.46  618.67  (72.99)

Other receivables  402  191  168  176  163  448  110.14  14.04  (4.51)  7.71  (63.59)

Short-term Investments  41,488  33,697  26,257  9,121  6,698  9,691  23.12  28.34  187.86  36.18  (30.88)

Taxation - payment less provision  -    -    -    1,216  131  -    -    -    (181.41)  825.96  318.94 

Cash and bank balances  3,221  2,738  5,365  2,068  4,195  3,771  17.66  (48.98)  159.44  (50.70)  11.25 

Total Assets  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  25,106  27,576  11.02  14.16  93.02  4.00  (8.96)

 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital  786  786  786  786  786  786  -    -    -    -    -   

Reserves  30,411  26,844  23,250  19,130  16,907  16,228  13.29  15.46  21.54  13.14  4.19 

Shareholders' Equity  31,197  27,630  24,036  19,916  17,693  17,014  12.91  14.95  20.69  12.56  3.99 

Deferred taxation  -    -    -    219  -    166  -    -    (102.42)  737.48  (120.69) 

Deferred Revenue  4  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Trade, other payables and provisions  9,683  10,035  9,181  4,430  6,014  6,512  (3.51)  9.31  107.22  (26.33)  (7.65)

Advances from customers and dealers  22,189  19,127  16,193  1,546  1,399  3,824  16.01  18.12  947.60  10.51  (63.42)

Taxation - provision less payment  807  745  990  -    -    60  8.34  (24.78)  181.41  -    (318.94)

Total Equity and Liabilities  63,880  57,537  50,399  26,111  25,106  27,576  11.02  14.16  93.02  4.00  (8.96)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Net Sales  112,272  108,758  96,516  57,064  63,829  76,963  3.23  12.68  69.14  (10.60)  (17.07)

Cost of sales  92,450  91,027  82,272  51,270  57,972  70,401  1.56  10.64  60.47  (11.56)  (17.65)

Gross profit  19,822  17,731  14,244  5,794  5,857  6,562  11.79  24.48  145.86  (1.08)  (10.74)

Distribution costs  1,228  1,061  996  794  814  820  15.75  6.51  25.52  (2.54)  (0.70)

Administrative expenses  1,053  931  799  635  644  628  13.13  16.54  25.85  (1.45)  2.54 

Other operating expenses  177  144  119  52  66  45  23.05  20.42  129.67  (21.43)  47.09 

WPPF and WWF  1,418  1,285  1,052  372  370  471  10.31  22.15  182.91  0.54  (21.44)

Operating income  3,593  3,164  2,907  1,113  1,038  1,776  13.54  8.86  161.09  7.27  (41.56)

Finance costs  398  77  52  38  31  61  415.07  48.93  35.63  24.59  (49.67)

Profit before taxation  19,141  17,397  14,133  5,016  4,970  6,313  10.02  23.10  181.72  0.94  (21.28)

Taxation  6,140  5,942  5,022  1,143  1,612  2,010  3.32  18.32  339.38  (29.10)  (19.79)

Profit after taxation  13,001  11,455  9,110  3,873  3,358  4,303  13.50  25.74  135.20  15.37  (21.97)

Analysis
Horizontal
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A caring customer service must 
permeate the entire organization, 
inside and out and from top to 
bottom. This helps build essential, 
lasting and meaningful relationships. 
With the launch of new cars, such 
as the Hilux REVO and Fortuner, we 
are catering to diverse needs of our 
customers, with solutions for ease of 
purchase, partial payment plans and 
excellent after sales services. This is 
in alignment with international market 
parameters.

Caring
for customers
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For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
Value Addition
Statement of 

Distribution Of Wealth

2017 2016
Rupees in ‘000 % Rupees in ‘000 %

Wealth Generated

Gross revenue  135,681,765 97.4%  131,047,204 97.6%
Other income  3,593,425 2.6%  3,164,440 2.4%

 139,275,190 100.0%  134,211,644 100.0%

Bought in material and services and other expenses  83,555,766 60.0%  82,868,614 61.7%

 55,719,424 40.0%  51,343,030 38.3%

Wealth Distributed
Employees
Salaries, wages and other benefits  1,937,435 3.5%  1,626,473 3.2%
Society
Donations towards education, health and environment  173,975 0.3%  140,996 0.3%

Providers of Finance
Finance cost  397,998 0.7%  77,271 0.2%

Government
Income tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, WWF 
and WPPF

 38,605,810 69.3%  36,477,914 71.0%

Shareholders
Dividend  9,039,000 16.2%  7,860,000 15.3%

Retained within the business for future growth
Retained earnings, depreciation and amortization  5,565,206 10.0%  5,160,376 10.0%

 55,719,424 100.0%  51,343,030 100.0%

Employees Society Providers of finance  
Retained within the business for future growth  

Government Shareholders 

2017 2016

0.7%
0.3%

10%

3.5%

69.3%

16.2%

0.2%
0.3%

10%

3.2%

71.0%

15.3%
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“I welcome you to this 28th Annual General Meeting of your 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2017.”

Ali S. Habib
Chairman

Review
Chairman’s 
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Dear Shareholders,
The two main pillars of the Toyota Way are 
kaizen (continuous improvement) and respect for 
people. Over the past 27 years your Company 
has been committed on creating sustainable 
value for all of our stakeholders based on these 
principles. 

During the year under review, IMC bid farewell 
to one of our own – Mr. Parvez Ghias – our CEO 
who served the Company for over a decade, 
inspiring the team with his gentle but steadfast 
leadership. While his contributions as the leader 
of the Company firmly established IMC as a leader 
in the Pakistan industrial landscape, earning 
numerous awards from the Stock Exchange, 
the Management Association of Pakistan, 
Consumer Awards, the Forbes list of best 
companies; his most outstanding achievements 
were in cascading the Values and Vision of the 
Company to all of our 3,000 team members in 
our unending quest to be the most respected. 
Mr. Ghias is greatly admired and loved by the 
whole team and while we will miss him dearly, 
we will continue to benefit from his wisdom and 
guidance as a member of the Board. On behalf 
of all our management team, our network of 
dealers and suppliers and our shareholders, we 
offer him our sincere thanks and gratitude.

One of the most important and final responsibilities 
of every leader is to groom and install a successor. 
Under Mr. Ghias’ leadership, our Chief Operating 
Officer, Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali, who has grown 
from within the ranks of our organization and is 
a testament to our, promote from within culture, 
was appointed as Chief Executive. I am confident 
that he will build on the strong foundation and 
continue to lead the organization with dedication, 
responsibility and continue to respect our two 
main pillars of never-ending improvement and 
empowering and respecting our team. On behalf 
of the board and shareholders, we welcome him 
and offer him every support and guidance that 
we can provide.

In a significant change from my past practice, the 
Directors’ Report will provide a detailed review of 
the past year of operations and achievements. I 
will be limiting the Chairman’s Review in its scope 
from hereon.

Our world is changing very rapidly. The digital 
era and technology are disrupting almost every 
sphere of our lives. Renewable energy, incredible 
advancements in computing power, quantum 
improvements in batteries, electric cars, 
driverless cars and other forces are moving at 
a pace that makes it impossible to predict and 
plan in the conventional way over a 10 or 20 year 
period. Our vision is to embrace these changes 
by transforming ourselves into a continuously 
evolving and learning organization that is nimble 
and well prepared to seize these opportunities 
and continue to lead.  During the past year we 
implemented the new SAP S4/HANA and will 
continue to embrace technology and social 
media as a way to reach our customers quickly, 
efficiently and to hear from them in real time.

Safety in the work place is of paramount 
importance. Unfortunately, during the past year 
we had two incidents, one of which involved 
our team member and the other involved an 
external construction contractor’s employee. We 
are deeply saddened by these events and have 
resolved to re-intensify our efforts to transform 
the mindset of our team and all stakeholders in 
our value chain to re-examine and improve all 
safety protocols to prevent any recurrence.

I would like to offer my thanks to our partners, 
Toyota, who have supported us with many visits 
from their dedicated teams to help us review and 
improve our safety procedures.

The Directors’ Report will elaborate on our 
financial results and operations. I would like to 
extend my appreciation to the management 
team for delivering a record Profit-Before-Tax of 
Rs.19.14 billion which is a 10% increase over our 
previous best year.

The automobile market continues to exhibit 
strong growth and is forecasted to achieve a 
level of half a million units by the year 2025. The 
new Auto Development Policy is attracting new 
entrants with several well regarded and respected 
local groups entering into joint ventures to meet 
this growing demand. We strongly support and 
welcome these new entrants and we believe that 
a “Make in Pakistan” national strategy will benefit 
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our country, create jobs, save foreign exchange 
and further develop the supplier network in the 
years to come. The consumers will be afforded 
a wider choice of makes and models and we 
are resolved to embrace the competition which 
will both challenge us but undoubtedly make us 
better.

As a respected company, we make every effort 
to make our products and services available to 
customers in an efficient and customer friendly 
way. However, this is one area where our multi-
year struggle continues without any significant 
success. The Company’s distribution model is 
based on independently owned dealers, located 
throughout the country which continues to grow. 
Unfortunately, between the customer, the dealer 
and the company, there is an intermediary layer 
of investors operating in the undocumented 
sector that book vehicles and artificially created 
a false waiting period and exploit this for further 
sale to customers who are impatient to obtain 
their vehicles. This vicious cycle rewards the 
unscrupulous, undocumented investors while 
preventing us from being able to directly connect 
with our customers. We have made and will 
continue to make suggestions and requests 
to the Government to assist us in curbing this 
menace and on behalf of our management team, 
we offer our sincere regrets and apologies to our 
customers for the inconvenience that they face.

The Auto Development Policy envisaged 
a procedure in which customers would be 
compensated for delays in obtaining their 
vehicles beyond a stipulated period. Even though 
no procedure or details were ever mandated 
by the Government, your Company is the only 
automobile maker in Pakistan that is voluntarily 
making delayed delivery payments to all those 
customers who have to undergo a longer waiting 
period. While this step does not resolve the 
issue, it is our way of continuing to make our 
best efforts in order to continue to gain your trust 
and respect.

With many China Pakistan Economic Corridor 
(CPEC) projects being implemented, the rapid 
improvement in energy and infrastructure and 

continuing low inflation, Pakistan economy has 
the potential to achieve sustained GDP growth. 
These positive factors are being challenged by a 
huge growth in imports (despite low oil prices), 
putting a strain on our foreign exchange reserves 
and balance of payments and leading to loss 
of jobs, loss of Government revenue and de-
industrialization. I would urge the Government 
to adopt a Pakistan First Policy and continue 
to expand on their efforts to broaden the tax 
base and document the economy. 2018 will be 
an election year and Pakistan is at an important 
cross-road in which we must seize the opportunity 
and build on the strength and resources that our 
nation possesses in abundance.

During the year under review there were 6 
board meetings, in which the board received 
presentations on the Company’s operations, 
challenges and progress towards achieving 
their agreed objectives set by the board for the 
Company. We are privileged to have on our board, 
a rich balance of expatriates that bring Toyota’s 
global knowledge to our Company and highly 
experienced and respected Pakistani individuals 
who are able to provide meaningful guidance 
and input regularly. We are particularly grateful to 
our Audit Committee members, who conduct an 
extremely detailed and diligent review to ensure 
that we continue to anticipate and mitigate risks 
and comply with corporate best practices. 

Finally, on behalf of our management and board, 
I would like to extend our sincere thanks and 
gratitude to our 3,000 plus team members, all 
our stakeholders and especially our customers, 
who continue to have a strong faith in your 
Company’s products and services and while the 
future is promised to no one, I am optimistic that 
the best days for Pakistan and IMC lie ahead.

We bow to Allah and pray for His blessings and 
guidance.

Ali S. Habib
Chairman
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Report
Directors’

• Industry Review & Business 
Environment

• Company Review

• Customer Relations

• Customer First – Parts & Service

• Safety, Health & Environment

• Human Resources

• Operations

• Information Technology

• Corporate Social Responsibility - 
Concern Beyond Cars

• Corporate Matters & Related 
Disclosures

• Moving Forward

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali 
Chief Executive
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2017 2016

(Rupees in ‘000)
Profit After Taxation 13,001,265 11,454,940
Other Comprehensive Loss for the year (1,912) (851)
Un-appropriated Profit brought forward 52,059 57,970

13,051,412 11,512,059
Appropriations
1st Interim Dividend @ 250% i.e. Rs. 25 per share (2016:  200% i.e. Rs. 20 per share) 1,965,000 1,572,000
2nd Interim Dividend @250% i.e. Rs. 25 per share (2016: 200% i.e. Rs. 20 per share) 1,965,000 1,572,000
3rd Interim Dividend @ 300% i.e. Rs. 30 per share (2016: 200% i.e. Rs. 20 per share ) 2,358,000 1,572,000

6,288,000 4,716,000
Un-appropriated Profit Carried Forward 6,763,412 6,796,059

Subsequent Effects
Proposed Final Dividend @ 350% i.e. Rs.35 per share (2016: 400% i.e. Rs.40 per share) 2,751,000 3,144,000
Transfer to General Reserves 4,000,000 3,600,000

6,751,000 6,744,000
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 165.41 145.74

Financial Perfomance
The total sales of Toyota CKD and CBU closed at 
60,586, -6% after reaching an all-time high last year of 
64,584. The decline translates into a slight reduction in 
the market share from 29% to 28%. Notwithstanding 
this, the Company managed to surpass its financial 
performance as compared to last year. 

The company has posted new records on the financial 
front with gross sales revenue of Rs 135.68 billion, up 
by 3.53% compared to Rs 131.05 billion for the year 
ended June 2016, while profit after tax grew 13.5% 
to Rs 13.0 billion from Rs 11.45 billion posted for 

the year ended June 2016. The surge in the revenue 
and net profit is mainly attributable to the launch of 
new models, change in sales mix and substantial 
improvement in trading business.

Contribution to National Exchequer
During the year, the Company contributed a sum of  
Rs 39 billion to the national exchequer, which amounts 
to about 1% of the total revenue collection by the 
Government of Pakistan during the year. Since the 
Company’s incorporation in 1989, our contribution 
stands in excess of Rs 318 billion.

The Directors of Indus Motor Company Limited takes pleasure in presenting Directors’ Report, together with 
the Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Financial Results, Appropriations and Subsequent Effects
The financial results and appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2017 are as follows:
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Business  Environment
Industry Review & 

Business Environment, Risk and Uncertainties

It is encouraging  that the macroeconomic  
fundamentals of the country remained stable 
throughout the year and GDP is forecast to grow 
at 6% for the financial year 2017-18. Interest rates 
touched record low levels with availability of consumer 
finance that boosted auto demand. Planned spending 
on infrastructural development pertaining to the 
China-Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) bodes 
well and investor confidence has been bolstered by 
improvements in the law and order situation. Despite 
the ongoing political commotion following the recent 
Supreme Court judgment, we hope it will lead to better 
overall governance and put the country firmly on track 
to achieve economic prosperity and potential. 

We are concerned with the widening trade deficit 
that has reached an alarming US$ 32.5 billion. While 
the imports grew on account of capital goods which 
augers well for the country in the long term, the failure 
of exports to reach the targeted levels despite the offer 
of relief incentives by the government is disconcerting. 
We expect this imbalance will keep the Rupee under 
immense pressure causing inflation to spiral upwards 
and affect consumer spending that will adversely 
affect the growth momentum of the auto industry. 

Mobile internet penetration is growing exponentially, 
causing a shift in social preferences. Smartphone 
based ride hailing services have gained significant 
popularity in the metropolitan areas. A direct positive 
effect is seen in sales of 1000cc segment and used 
imported cars of the same category this year and is 
expected to continue.
 

Industry Review
Robust sales of automobiles throughout fiscal year 
2016-17 enabled the OEMs and the parts suppliers to 
operate at maximum capacities to meet the growing 
demand.

A total of 213,119 locally manufactured units were sold 
in the country during 2016-17 compared to 217,679 
units sold last year, indicating a 2% drop. The sales 
growth appears dampened due to inclusion of 32,000 
unit sales in last year on account of “Apna Rozgar 
Scheme”. However, excluding the scheme from 
2015-16, the growth in 2016-17 registered a 15% 
increase which reflects the true market demand. Our 
assertion is supported by the fact that 59,000 used 
cars landed in the country under various schemes, up 
by 9% compared to 54,000 units imported last year.
 
The growth in demand was also driven by introduction 
of the new locally produced models. The improved  
Corolla Altis Grande, the All-New Toyota Fortuner 
and the All-New Toyota Hilux REVO have been 
well-received by the consumer base in the relevant 
segments. 

The Punjab Government’s scheme of easy car finance 
culminated in early 2016 had reflected in the 800cc 
and LCV Pickup segments as -25% and -15%, 
respectively.
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Recommendations
We wish to put our strong appreciation on record for 
the Federal Government’s efforts in broadening the 
taxpayer base and for curbing the undocumented 
economic base. The Pakistan market offers huge 
potential, we urge the Government to bolster good 
governance as a key item on the public policy agenda 
and introduce long-term industrial policies in order 
to restore market confidence without stifling the 
dynamism that underlies all economic activity.

In tandem with the government’s measures to increase 
competition and industry production volumes, it is 
also imperative to thoroughly revamp the distribution 
mechanism without which the benefits of competition 
cannot reach the real customers. Your Company 
will continue advocating to the government to revisit 
the double taxation regime which is hampering the 
auto industry to move from the current distribution 
mechanism to a wholesale-retail method. The 
proposed distribution model is already implemented 
in the motorcycle industry in addition to other fast 
moving consumer goods industries. 

The long waiting period in the delivery of almost all 
models across the industry is a point of concern for 
all stakeholders. While, the Auto Development Policy 
(ADP) proposed measures to address this issue and 
we responded in time to all our obligations, regretfully, 
the government has yet to consider the proposals we 
tabled to curb the menace of premium, which has 
resulted in dissatisfaction of our loyal customers. Our 
proposal aims at imposition of a transfer tax on the 
first buyer who, as investor, is selling the vehicle soon 
after taking delivery. The Company believes this would 
considerably discourage investors and safeguard 
genuine customer interest.

Moreover, we strongly recommend the State Bank to 
strictly enforce restriction of issuance of pay orders on 
account of an unrelated third party after a customer 
has booked an order. At present, it is possible to issue 
pay orders on account of an unrelated third party 
which does not fund the transaction, which in turn 
leads to misrepresentation in terms of the source of 
funds.

We also recommend that the disparate load placed 
on the formal corporate sector for collection of taxes 
of withholding nature is reviewed as it is becoming 
increasingly complex to manage and is adding 
significantly to the cost of doing business in the 
country.

We are confident that the Government will effectively 
control the ongoing malpractices of under-invoicing 
and incorrect declaration of imported auto parts 
by unprincipled importers.  During the year, some 
corrections have been made in parts valuation 
disparity. However, many other anomalies need to be 
corrected.
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Your Company has been making crucial headway as 
the leading player in Pakistan’s auto industry and has 
accomplished important milestones. The fiscal year 
ending June 2017 marked another important period 
in the Company’s revenues and profitability. Our 
sales successfully stayed above 60,000 units mark 
for the second consecutive year with record high 
financial performance. It showed the solid customer 
confidence in the Company and its value proposition 
offered to the customer.

The year under review was challenging for the 
manufacturing division throughout the year amidst 
a pressing demand to meet production targets. The 
Company migrated from the legacy SAP system to 
the state-of-the-art SAP S/4 HANA version which 
required slowing down the pace of production to 
support the learning curve of team members on the 
new system. We also witnessed the innate challenges 
related to run-out of the first generation Fortuner and 
7th generation Hilux. In the last quarter, preparations 
were made for minor model changes in the Corolla 
that required the making of new tools for parts and 
improving the process by addition of safety features 
in the vehicle. This also resulted in a brief loss in 
production volume.

Spirit of “Kaizen” or Continuous Improvement is 
part of our basic values. Several actions were taken 
to eradicate bottlenecks and enhance production 
capacity. A multi-billion Rupee investment was made 
in the paint shop to increase production capacity, 
which is expected to yield results from the last quarter 
of next year. This will further help in our drive to reduce 
the delivery period and intensify customer satisfaction. 
However, it restricted our production volume during 
the year under review.

In order to reduce the impact of these factors on 
production, the Company continued to operate its 
manufacturing facility at full capacity, working daily 
overtime hours and on off Saturdays to offset the loss 
in production. The total production at the Company 
stood at 59,945 units, down 6% from 64,096 units 
produced in the corresponding period last year.

In line with our commitment to the ADP, we introduced 
multiple specification upgrades in our entire vehicle 
lineup, including expensive safety features that 
adversely affected the business proposition. In 
addition, we have taken a step forward to standardize 
dual SRS Airbags in the entire model lineups of 
passenger cars and SUVs.

Toyota Corolla – CKD Passenger Car Segment: 
Staying true to its brand values and attributes, Toyota 
works tirelessly to further improve its specifications 
in the areas of lifestyle and safety and to ensure that 
Toyota in Pakistan remains the Best in Class. 

The changes in Corolla Altis Grande that was 
introduced in June 2016 with Dual SRS Airbags, 
Automatic Climate Control System and other luxury 
features, had been highly appreciated throughout 
the year. During the year, the anti-theft system 
“Immobilizer” was standardized in the entire Corolla 
range. The immobilizer is designed to help prevent the 
engine from running unless the original key is inserted.

 

Corolla segment grew by 8% from 83,178 units to 
89,680 units. The production constraint had limited 
the Company’s sales to reach its true potential closing 
at 52,676 units -8% as compared to 57,452 units 
last year with market share of 59%. Meanwhile, the 
competition gained traction and increased volume 
by 44%. The Company has always been quick to 
respond to changing customer needs. Recently, the 
Company has introduced Big Minor Model change in 
Toyota Corolla with the best in class safety and luxury 
features standardizing Dual SRS Airbags across the 
entire Corolla range, which will result in considerable 
benefits through the next fiscal year.

Review
Company

IMC recently launched the Toyota Corolla Altis Grande 
Big Minor Change with Best-in-class safety and luxury 
features.
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 Toyota Hilux – CKD Pickup Segment
A targeted consumer segmentation and careful 
feature selection enabled the Company to launch 
another milestone - the eighth generation of the Hilux 
marketed under the new name “REVO” derived from 
the word “Revolution”. The All-New Hilux REVO, 
replacing the previous Hilux Vigo champ, was 
launched in November 2016. 

True to its name, REVO is a luxurious 4x4, graceful 
enough for businessmen in the urban areas and 
tough enough for the rugged terrain in an off-
road environment. The new Hilux REVO is the 
personification of the optimum drive.

The all-new Toyota Hilux REVO comes with the much-
awaited and powerful 3.0L turbo-intercooler diesel 
engine in addition to other advanced features aimed 
at luxury and superior off-road performance of the 
vehicle. This included powered Leather Seats, Cool 
Box, Automatic Climate Control System, Differential 
Lock, Cruise Control and an even more durable 
chassis design for superior structural integrity. The 
All-New Hilux REVO was warmly welcomed by the 
customers. 

The Hilux 4x4 models moved confidently forward 
and recorded 22% volume increase to 4,112 units 
compared to 3,375 units last year. Hilux 4x2 remains 
a favorite amongst fleet users, institutional buyers, 
entrepreneurs and SMEs due to its built, durability 
and versatility. However, due to production limitations, 
the Hilux 4x2 could achieve only 1,748 units with a 
drop of 31%. The total Hilux sales stood at 5,860 
units compared to 5,923 units last year with a drop 
of 1%. 

Toyota Fortuner - CKD SUV Segment: 
This year the Toyota Fortuner also entered into its 
second generation. The All-New Toyota Fortuner, 
designed to capture the emerging SUV market, was 
launched in December 2016 at a grand ceremony that 
was attended by Mr. Hiroki Nakajima, Chief Engineer, 
Toyota Motor Corporation. The market response to 
the new Fortuner has exceeded all expectations and 
translated into 128% growth from 602 units to 1,375 
units this year. 

The All-New Fortuner has futuristic styling, a luxurious 
interior and cutting-edge drive train features like 
On-Demand Electronic 4WD, 6-Speed Automatic 
Transmission with Paddle Shift, 3-Mode Smart  

The All-New Toyota Hilux REVO, which is a daringly 
bold, sturdy and sleek all-terrain vehicle.

Spectacular launch event of All-New Toyota Hilux REVO featuring a star-studded cultural performance.
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Driving options (Eco/Normal/Power), Cruise Control, 
Cool Box, Differential Lock, innovative Bi-Beam LED 
Headlamp, Knee Airbag and 18” Alloy Wheels. 

Toyota Imported Vehicles - CBU Segment:
The new Land Cruiser 200 series was also launched 
during the year. The model was well-received by our 
valued customers and, in turn, strengthened the 
Company’s presence in the luxury SUV category in 
Pakistan.

The market for the new CBU grew from 2,293 units 
to 5,547 units this year, achieving a growth rate of 
142%. This is attributed to the introduction of new 
models in Passenger car and SUV segments, while 
luxury passenger cars also posted sizeable growth. 
The demand for heavy duty trucks and buses also 
grew, fueled by CPEC-related demand. It is heartening 
to note that the anomaly that existed in the import 
of CBUs in the hybrid sector has now been removed 
and the government must be commended for taking 
due initiative in this regard.

The Company’s sales of imported vehicles rose by 
11% in FY17 to 675 units as compared to 607 units 
last year. Additionally, 438 units were sold directly to 
customers by Toyota Motors including a large fleet 
order of Land Cruiser 70 series as compared to 214 
units last year.

Strengthening the Dealership Network 
To facilitate market growth and continuous quest 
to reach out to and cater to its valued customers’ 
needs, the Company added three new dealerships 
to its already vast network making it a total of 45 3S 
dealerships nationwide. These include Toyota Clifton 
Motors in Karachi, Toyota HN Motors in Lahore and 
Toyota Point Motors in Hyderabad. To ensure that the 
increasing demand is met efficiently, the Company will 
continue to expand its dealership network in the near 
future.

Three new 3S dealership launched this year, Toyota 
Point Motors in Hyderabad, Toyota HN in Lahore and 
Toyota Clifton in Karachi.

Stunning, strong and classic, the New Toyota Land 
Cruiser 200 series.

Mr. Hiroki Nakajima, Chief Engineer, Toyota Motor
Corporation graced the auspicious launch event of 
the All-New Toyota Hilux REVO and All-New Toyota 
Fortuner.
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People form a lifelong affinity with their vehicles, and 
our Customer Relations function plays a vital role 
to keep customer satisfied through implementing 
Toyota’s Global CR standards in letter and spirit at the 
Company and at all dealerships. While our customers’ 
first point of contact is the dealership, we are just a call 
away and can be reached at 0800-11123 in addition 
to email customer.relations@toyota-indus.com. 

Toyota Customer Delight Workshop
The Toyota Customer Delight Workshop or TCDW as 
it has now come to be known is in its sixth year. The 
annual workshop brings together Dealers’ and the 
Company’s Sales, After Sales, T-Sure and Customer 
Relations teams on one platform. The TCDW’s prime 
focus is on developing a customer-centric mindset 
through collaborative thinking and close coordination 
amongst functions to achieve the common goal of 
customer delight at every customer touch point.

This year the theme was “5S” (Sort, Set in order, 
Shine, Standardize, Sustain), which is a simple tool, 
handed down by Toyota that facilitates organizing our 
workplace in a clean, efficient and safe manner to 
enhance productivity and visual management and to 
ensure a standardized working environment. 

The purpose of the workshop was to extend this 
philosophy to our dealers to manage a better 
workplace and provide customers a fulfilling shopping 
experience by creating an engaging and refreshing 
dealership ambience.

Training was given to 160 managers of all nationwide 
dealerships from the functions of Sales, Parts, 

Service, CR and TSure. The trainers represented the 
departments of Safety, Health & Environment and 
Customer Relations. To get an in-depth understanding 
of the subject, the participants were taken through a 
simulation exercise. 

Toyota Way - Let’s LiVe iT!
Living up to customers’ 
expectations and delighting 
them is fundamental to our 
cornerstone “Customer First” 
principle and the way to do so 
is by living the Toyota Way. The 
theme of the program is to live up 
to customers’ expectations by living the Toyota Way. 
The basic idea of the program is the “implementation” 
in letter and spirit, of Toyota Standards on the 
Dealership floor, essentially achieved through cross-
functional collaboration and a culture of thinking, 
acting and living Customer First. The 5S philosophy 
too is part of the Toyota Way-Lets LiVE iT program, 
which promises deliverables such as (a) earning 
customer smiles, building trust and enhancing 
customer retention (b) creating Toyota fans, and (c) 
representing the voice of the customer as the base for 
corporate renewal.

The initiative grew to the extent that the Toyota Dealer 
Success Program (TDSP) - a performance evaluation 
mechanism for Dealers - was brought under the 
umbrella of Customer Relations to facilitate uniform 
understanding and promotes evaluation uniformity 
across the nation and across all the dealership 
functions.

Relations
Customer 

160 managers of Sales, Aftersales, CR and TSure attended Toyota Customer Delight Workshop in Lahore.
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Parts & Service
Customer First - 

The Customer First Department consolidates Parts 
sales and After Sales Service as a single strategic 
area to provide customers a complete and reliable 
ownership experience throughout the life cycle of their 
vehicles. A superior customer experience through 
quality Toyota services and the availability of genuine 
spare parts is disseminated throughout our dealership 
network and selected retail outlets across the country.
Business Initiatives
The Toyota Mobile Application is the first of its kind 
in Pakistan. It enables Toyota customers to locate 
the nearest Toyota Dealerships, book their service 
appointments online, get maintenance plans and give 
online feedbacks. The initiative has so far engaged 
more than 25,000 users and made more than 900 
appointments.
In addition, warranty activation process has been 
digitized through an online portal. The Warranty 
Activation Portal engages customers by having all 
warranty and safety related information for a better 
and secure ownership experience. The campaign was 
run on social media and attained the key achievement 
of generating more than 2,500 genuine customer 
registrations so far.

Another initiative was the launch of an Extended 
Warranty (EW) for an additional 1 year/ 25,000 
KMs (whichever comes first) for all Toyota Corolla 
customers so that they could enjoy extra miles with 
added peace of mind. As a result, more than 1,500 
EWs were sold in 3 months.
Prepaid Maintenance Package was also introduced 
this year. The purpose of this program is to retain 
customers for longer periods and to create an 
additional revenue stream for the Company through 
providing customers with one-stop maintenance 
solutions. The Prepaid Periodic Maintenance package 
also supported the increased sale of Extended 
Warranty, thus creating additional revenue for the 
Company and the authorized dealership.

Toyota Prestige Club (TPC) 
An exclusive club for Toyota Fortuner customers 
was formed this year, where members are frequently 
invited at various customer engagement activities. It 
is aimed at recognizing their patronage and ensuring 
best in class customer satisfaction. Several activities 
are planned round the year to achieve the objective.
Customer Satisfaction Kaizen Evolution (CSKE) 
Cup
CSKE is a dealership level competition which gave 
the participants a platform to showcase their year-
long Kaizen efforts and compete amongst each other 
for the Best of the Best title. It comprised training 
sessions, mid-term evaluation, a regional contest 
and a national Grand Finale which was won by 
Toyota Central Motors. The key achievement of the 
competition was the transfer of practical knowledge 
about Toyota Way in problem solving in addition to a 
successful alliance of 3S+CR.
Toyota Genuine Motor Oil (TGMO) Business
After establishing in-house sales with absorption 
rate of more than 95%, the Company has developed 
Distributors (with defined Prime Responsibility Areas) 
where they run their distribution vans in order to 
make TGMO available at every shop. It involved Shop 
Brandings and Retailer Brand Promotion activities.
A seminar was organized to interact with jobbers 
in the market. On this occasion, a Trade Promotion 
was announced for the jobbers. As a result, market 
availability increased from 155 shops to 682 shops 
while market sales increased significantly.
Brand Promoters were placed at petrol stations and 
retail shops. The key achievement was that the activity 
was able to pull customers to dealerships through a 
petrol pump brand promotion activity. As a result, 
more than 4,000 new customers were added to the 
database and KYC improved. 
After 10 successful years, the Company has changed 
its Toyota Genuine Motor Oil bottle design to make it 
more attractive. To increase the product range and 
market offering, new grades will also be introduced 
in near future.
Parts Business Results
The Parts business has witnessed highest ever gross 
sales in the history of the Company amounting to Rs. 
5.3 billion in the year under review. This includes Rs. 
2.2 billion achieved through fleet business. Another 
major milestone of highest ever, more than 500,000 
Customer Paid Units Serviced (CPUS), was achieved 
this year which will add to the Company’s reach to 
real end customers.
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Environment
Safety, Health &

At Indus Motor Company, our Safety Policy conveys the 
following simple message:

“SAFETY WILL ALWAYS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER 
PRODUCTION, SALES AND PROFITS”

The Company continues to comply with all safety, 
health and environmental laws and regulations. At the 
same time, we recognize the benefits of appropriate 
safety and environmental management as one of our 
highest priorities. To this end, we pursue programs and 
practices for conducting operations in a healthy, safe 
and environmentally sound manner.

Our policy is to pursue internationally accepted S.H.E 
standards. We are fully committed to maintaining product 
and service quality while ensuring that no harm is caused 
to people and no damage is done to the environment. 

We are committed to provide a safe workplace to all 
our employees, ensuring that, as far as are reasonably 
practicable, full care is taken of the safety of contractors, 
suppliers, vendors and all members of the public who 
may be affected by the Company’s business operations.

The Company continues to strive to prevent all accidents 
and injuries through the active participation of every 
employee and is committed in making continuous efforts 
towards identifying, eliminating and managing all safety 
risks associated with its actions.

Our Safety Philosophy revolves around (a) Safety is 
everyone’s responsibility, (b) All accidents are preventable, 
(c) All employees are empowered to stop any unsafe job 
or act and (d) No task is so important that risk of injury to 
people is justified.  

Safety Training
The Company conducted a series of training programs 
for its employees throughout the year. The general safety 
training programs like firefighting, safety dojo and first 
aid are aimed at empowering every working member 
to deal with any emergency and to avoid accidents. 
Special programs include specific job training pertaining 
to construction safety, working at height, electrical job, 

machine installation and process safety. There are seven 
Toyota certified safety trainers in the Company who 
had conducted weekly trainings throughout the year 
training more than 1,000 people and covering 100% of 
all contractors and relevant Company employees. These 
programs have been proven effective in creating a safety 
mindset and promoting a safety culture. Additionally, 
five more personnel have been trained at Safety Training 
Center, Thailand for machine safety and risk assessment.

Safety Record
The Company had 01 Lost Working Day injury after six 
consecutive years of zero Lost Work Day. One of our 
colleagues has faced an accident this year leading to 
permanent disability. The whole organization felt the 
pain and agony and committed to bring about all the 
necessary changes to avoid such incident in future. 
Subsequently, Toyota officials conducted a detailed Risk 
Audit of the plant and recommended actions against each 
audit observations. The progress had been monitored 
by the S.H.E. steering committee and completed to 
the satisfaction of the Audit team. In addition, a fatal 
accident happened with a third-party contractor’s staff 
during a construction of Palut Shop extension.

Both the incidents had forced the Company to rethink 
and thoroughly investigate the genuine root causes 
and to eliminate them forever. The in-depth root-cause 
analysis revealed that the safety mindset had been 
weakened which allured employees to cut corners and 
take shortcuts at the cost of safety risks, while other 
people hesitated or didn’t advocate safer practices to the 
risk-takers. A thorough mindset and behavioral change 
regime was put in place that included detailed safety 
trainings and a mandatory screening of safety video for 
every outsider entering the Company’s premises. 

In addition, the Company took a number of operational 
measures to avoid such incidents in future. These include 
development PMRs (Plant Management Requirements) 
guidelines for process safety focusing on production 
and non-production jobs and a dedicated team for 

Emergency response training being conducted for 
combating fire breakout

Frequent emergency drills conducted across the 
company
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Construction Safety Management which is working 
tirelessly to ensure safety at the work site. In addition, 
more than 100 Anzen (safety) leaders were trained and 
designated across the plant to ensure implementation 
of Safety Management System, Job Safety Analysis 
and Work Permits and to conduct tools and machinery 
inspection on a daily basis to inculcate widespread 
adoption of the Company’s safety culture.

The Company has achieved continuous reduction in 
Non-Lost Work Day injuries. Last year we had 04 Non-
Lost Work Day injury cases showing improvement from 
09 cases in the year before. All 04 Non-Lost Work Day 
injuries happened in non-production areas.

Construction Safety Management
The Company has developed a dedicated team for 
Construction Safety Management and improved 
Contractor Management as a part of its Construction 
Safety Management System. These improvements 
include specific training programs for specific jobs 
accompanied by classes, a practical session and exams.   
It has also introduced a Worker Control System and has 
improved the Work Permit System from one general 
permit to four specific work permits (Work at Heights, 
Hot Work, Electrical Work and General Work). 

The Company has made it mandatory for all high-risk jobs 
to make a Job Safety Analysis before commencing it.  
This includes the need for a machine and tool inspection 
system to be developed. The Company has drawn up 
training programs for safety leaders who are responsible 
to carry out jobs safely. All these systems work with full 
commitment from the top management who ensure 
compliance of the system through audit walks.

Safety & Environment Months
Celebrating a Safety Month 
is a way to promote safety 
awareness in the team. The 
activities in a Safety Month 
include conducting safety 
training programs and line-side 
safety circles. It is a method of 
conveying safety messages to 
all concerned. Safety audits 
and distribution of safety 
souvenirs is undertaken at the 
end of the month to involve 
everyone in establishing a 
safety culture. Celebrating 
the Safety Month is a way 
to convey the importance of 
safety at the workplace.  

Environmental Assessment Audit
The Environmental Assessment System (EAS) is the 
Toyota system for environment management. Toyota has 
developed a five-year plan and sets key performance 
indicators to achieve its environment targets. The 
Company has made remarkable achievements in 
previous years and raising the bar. The environmental 
performance indicators are made challenging this year 
as per the 6th Environmental Action Plan. The Company 
is focusing on ISO-14000 certification covering all 
manufacturing shops at Indus Motor Company while 
expanding the coverage to all 60 parts suppliers and 45 
dealers nationwide. In addition, CO2, waste and water 
consumption reduction targets were also increased.

IMC team promoting Toyota Global project for 
greener environment

Training session conducted on Construction Safety 
Management
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Resources
Human

At Indus Motor Company, the capabilities of the 
organisation reside in knowledge, skills and motivation 
of its human resources, who are considered as our 
strategic business partners and play a key role in 
nurturing a work ethic that is a combination of both 
hard work and a cheerful work environment. 

Attracting the Best Talent 
The Company has undertaken several campus-
recruitment drives at leading graduate educational 
institutions for Management Trainee and Trainee 
Engineers. Our aim is to reach out to the best talent 
available and be easily accessible to them. For this 
purpose, an HR portal has been developed and can 
be accessed at www.toyota-indus.com where the 
candidates can register themselves online, upload 
their CVs and have a fair chance of selection. 

Capability Building 
As part of our development and retention policy, 
a rigorous training and development programs 
were rolled out to enhance their skills. In addition 
to structured in-house trainings, we have partnered 
with leading institutes such as LUMS, IBA and KSBL 
for Management Development Programs locally and 
with the world’s top-class institutions like Harvard 
Business School, London Business School, INSEAD 
and Wharton to stay on the top of the business 
through enriching the strategic and leadership skill in 
our organization.     

Maintaining the Global Standards, we have a pool 
of Toyota Certified Trainers to pass the Toyota Best 
Practices on to the organization through the concept 
of Training within the industry (TWI). The Company has 
one-of-a-kind in-house training facility equipped with 
certified equipment by Toyota where our work force 
is trained to give them a plant-like feel environment 
before taking on the actual work. 

Adding to this we have worked on the overall 
engagement of our employees through creating a 
healthy and positive environment for our employees. 
On Production shop floor “1st line managers” is 
one of the initiatives we took, as this program tend 
to be the interface between management and non-
management staff and thus plays a leading role in 
resolution of workplace grievances on time and in 
motivating the team members to perform at their best.

Diversity 
We also support equal opportunity employment and 
facilitate women’s engagement in the workforce. Last 
year, for instance, we inducted a batch of 34 women 
on the shop floor and helped them successfully 
perform production-related tasks, which were earlier 
supposed to be performed by male staff members 
only. Our target is to increase female employees’ 
population ratio to 9% of total management employees 
and this will improve gradually over the years. 

Engagement
To ensure a healthy and positive environment for our 
employees, we regularly assess employees’ morale 
and satisfaction. During the year under review, a 
thorough Climate Survey was conducted over the 
entire population. The results showed that people 
take pride in their association with the Company. They 
also believe that their work is important, as it directly 
contributes to the organization’s success. While we 
achieved several positive results in that regard, some 
areas of improvement were also highlighted for which 
we have developed an action plan. 

We have started celebration of birthdays of our 
employees and this gives the employees an 
opportunity to interact with our top management in 
a lighter mood. We have also installed snack vending 
machines at various locations to facilitate employees. 
Dedicated movie shows are also organized where 
employees and their families can enjoy quality time 
together. In addition to that, the Company has 
decided to roll out a series of sporting events in 
the coming months in order to promote a culture of 
healthy activities among the employees. 
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Operations
During the year under review, the production volume 
had reduced to 59,945 recording a drop of 6.5% vs. 
64,096 last year, the background of which had been 
explained in earlier section. 

Commitment to Quality
The Company continuously endeavors to take product 
quality to a new level which can match the best in the 
region. To achieve this, we are making investments 
and are upgrading our manufacturing facilities and 
processes. The management places a sharper focus 
at all levels and Toyota Motamachi, which is the 
designated mother plant, provides us unrelenting 
support. This has a positive impact in leading us 
towards an even stronger culture of quality as we aim 
to be recognized as a Company that ensures quality, 
dependability and reliability in its products.

Quality Control Circle (QCC) Convention
The Annual QCC convention was held in August 
2016 with Engr. Baligh ur Rehman, Minister of State 
for Federal Education and Professional Training, as 
the Chief Guest. The Minister lauded the efforts of 
the Company for organizing a QCC convention each 
year and making sure that continuous improvement 
activities never cease. Several themes were presented 
in the convention aimed at improving safety and 
quality, enhancing efficiency and cost reduction. The 

convention helps in increasing employees’ motivation 
by empowering each employee to play an active 
role in process improvement and solving problems 
Encountered on the Shop floor. Weld Shop bagged 
the 1st position followed by Press Shop and Paint 
Shop as the 2nd and 3rd position holders, respectively. 
In the vendor category, Thal Boshoku won the 1st 
position. The winning Weld Shop team represented 
Pakistan and participated in the 27th Toyota Global 
QC Circle Convention held in Toyota City, Japan.

Asia Pacific Skill Contest 
Toyota Daihatsu Engineering and Manufacturing, 
Thailand (TDEM) organizes the Asia Pacific Skill 
Contest each year, this is aimed at recognizing the 
talent of affiliate plants. The competing IMC team 
leaders and team members won 3 medals this year.  
The Silver medal was won by Mr. Muhammad Imran of 
Assembly Shop while the Bronze medals went to Mr. 
Muhammad Farhan of Press Shop and Mr. Zeeshan 
Yousuf of Weld Shop. In addition, 5 skill awards were 
presented to Indus Motor Company. Of these, 3 were 
for the Assembly Shop and 1 each for the Press and 
Weld Shops. 

2nd Jishuken Marathon
Toyota Daihatsu Engineering and Manufacturing 
(TDEM) has established the Jishuken (Self Study 

27th Toyota Global QC Circle Convention with participants from IMC Weld Shop.
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Group) activity, following Asia Pacific manufacturing 
companies for Yokoten to develop shop floor 
management. The Group Leader must understand 
the process of the Toyota Production System (TPS), 
enhance Kaizen ability by identifying 3Ms (Muri, Mura 
and Muda) and take effective countermeasures to 
eliminate them. The Company has developed certified 
TPS trainers and human resource by participating in 
Jishuken at Toyota Motor Manufacturing, Indonesia 
and Toyota Motors, Thailand.

The 2nd Jishuken Marathon was held in November 
2016. The activities were Gemba-focused, which is 
the soul of TPS and included the opinions of team 
members, the true spirit of the Toyota Way i.e. 
Respect for People. In the Marathon, a total of 224 
3M observations were highlighted and 12% cycle 
time reduced against a target of 10%. The Assembly 
Shop won all 3 positions and appreciation awards 
were distributed to all participants.

Localization 
Indus Motor Company is continuously engaged in 
a quest to enrich the Pakistani auto industry and 
increase the percentage of local parts used in its 
vehicles. The Company has already excelled in this 

pursuit and plans to continue in this direction in future. 
It has increased the total number of localized parts 
from 752 to 777 in the Corolla; some of the key high-
tech parts had never been localized before.

In this spirit, the Company has again been successful 
in assisting its suppliers. Its Technical Assistance 
Agreements with foreign principal companies have 
resulted in transfer of cutting-edge technology to 
Pakistan. With more in the pipeline, there are a few 
noteworthy accomplishments that the Company has 
already achieved. 

The Chrome Plating Plant has now been completed 
through a technical assistance agreement with 
Japanese manufacturer Kanto Kasai and a spot 
assistance agreement with a Taiwanese company, 
FornYou. Frame assembly for the Toyota Hilux 
and Toyota Fortuner was also localized. We have 
introduced the LED type Head Lamps in new Toyota 
Corolla. This localization took place for the first time 
in Pakistan by Auvitronics Limited with technical 
assistance agreements with Koito Japan. Also LIN 
type Alternator assembly was localized with the 
support of Denso Japan, making the headlamps 
more efficient.

Proud winners of Asia Pacific Skill Contest. IMC members from left to right: Farhan, Zeeshan and 
Imran with their medals.
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Induction of SAP
The Company is currently going through a digital 
transformation of its entire value chain. In order to meet 
growing customer needs and expectations of quality, 
there is a need to integrate supplier and dealership 
network in the context of People, Process and 
Technology so that the operations become even more 
efficient. 

As part of the digital transformation initiative and with 
the end goal of enabling production of superior quality 
vehicles with faster delivery times and a delightful 
customer experience, the Company has implemented 
the latest version of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 
tool, SAP S/4 HANA. With this, the Indus Motor Company 
becomes the first automotive company in the world 
to go-live with SAP S/4 HANA on high-performance 
IBM Power8 infrastructure. Major operations including 
Sales, Production, Finance, Material Management, 
Plant Maintenance, Production Engineering and Human 
Capital Management have been upgraded. Additionally, 
Business Warehouse and Fiori Data Analytics have been 
implemented for improved decision making based on 
real-time data. 

These capabilities will allow the Company to offer a 
delightful experience to its customers through innovative 
service offerings. There are three major challenges that 
are being addressed with the implementation of SAP 
S/4 HANA - Volume, Velocity and Visibility, the 3Vs in a 
Supply chain. 

Volume refers to the capability of maximizing throughput 
through existing facilities. Through a combination of SAP 
Warehouse management, RFID technology and access 
control, the Company will be able to handle a high 
volume of vehicles and parts in order to meet customer 
demand. 

Velocity is the speed with which information traverses 
through the supply chain, reducing the cycle and 
shipping time. Through SAP S/4 HANA integrated with 
suppliers and partner portals, the Company will be able 
to achieve the desired velocity. 

The third component is process visibility. With RFID, it 
is now possible to feed data to SAP S/4 HANA in real-
time, which can be analyzed instantly. This provides 
actionable information when it matters the most. This 
added visibility will improve overall decision-making at 
the Company.

IT Initiatives
Keeping up with the latest trends in technology, such 
as Big Data, Mobility and Internet of Things (IOT), the 
Company has launched several initiatives in alignment 
with the corporate objectives.

It has revamped its Legacy Email system to state-of-
the-art Microsoft Exchange Hybrid with the collaboration 
capabilities of Office 365. This addresses enhanced 
security requirements around IMC’s messaging 
infrastructure. 

On the Information Security front, IMC’s backend 
infrastructure was improved with the latest Firewall 
implementation to cope with modern-day cyber threats. 
A comprehensive information security and awareness 
program was also launched to promote awareness 
about common information security threats and how to 
avoid them by following good practices.

Some of the major Data Analytics dashboards that have 
been provided during the current year include the ones 
for Customer Relations, After-Sales Service, Production 
Progress, Quality Tracking, Management Dashboard, 
Finance and Human Capital Management, etc. 

During the current fiscal year, the Company has also 
automated several business processes through in-
house application development. For the Technical 
Division, a Productivity Management System has been 
created to automate the process of recording, analysis 
and communication of production efficiency. 

Business interactions between the Company and 
dealerships have also been automated through the 
Sales Order Booking application (PBO), Revamp and the 
Genesis Dealership portal. Such digital transformation at 
the dealership end has eliminated considerable manual 
work at the pre-delivery inspection level

In order to support the Marketing and Sales functions, a 
Toyota Mobile app has been created to provide a direct 
link between the customer and the Company which 
will eventually improve Know-Your-Customer (KYC). 
Moreover, a Toyota Bliss portal has been developed 
to manage and incentivize sales staff performance at 
dealerships. For the convenience of customers, IT has 
also provided Vehicle availability and Invoicing Status on 
the corporate website, which has resulted in customer 
convenience while checking vehicle availability and a 
considerable reduction in call volumes at IMC Call Center.  

Technology
Information

IMC Project team at SAP S/4 HANA Go-Live
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Concern Beyond Cars
Corporate Social Responsibility -

As a caring and responsible corporate entity and a 
member of the UN Global Compact, the Company is 
proud of its outreach to the communities in education, 
health and social services that is contributing to 
changing lives of the underprivileged segments of 
society. Additionally, the Company will continue to retain 
focus on road safety, technical education, protection of 
the environment and responding to natural disasters.

The Company is fully cognizant of its responsibility 
towards the environment and the society at large and 
actively participated in various forms of social contribution. 
A total of Rs 174 million was spent on social contribution 
in the year of 2016-17 with major spending in health 
and education sectors. The Company also conducts 
Environmental Assessment Audits every year in line with 
its principals with sharp focus on emissions and waste. 
It also played leading role advocating for introduction of 
better quality diesel fuel in the country in order to enable 
the industry to introduce cleaner and more efficient 
diesel engines of Euro-2 emission regulation standards. 
In addition, the Company has launched an education 
campaign for general public aimed at adopting safe 
driving habits in the name of “Be Safety Leader”.

The Company remains committed to its social 
investment principle which we owe to the society 
we live and operate in.  We strive to make a positive 
contribution for the underprivileged communities among 
which we operate and substantially invest in, such as 
the education and health program that aims to bring 
sustainable improvement to economically marginalized 
people. As a part of the CSR effort, our “Community 
Uplift Program” is focused at improving lives in a number 
of villages surrounding our vicinity.

Major CSR initiatives in 2016-17, that continue to be 
of immense interest to us since they are, in their own 
right, comparable to the best-in-class and are helping to 
transform education and health care for the deserving in 
the country.

• Habib University: Appropriate nurturing of human  
 potential is essential for the creation of a socially 
 responsible society. The Habib University 
 is envisioned as a world-class research-based 
 undergraduate institution, which aims to redefine 
 higher education by becoming a true center of 
 reflective knowledge that will spark constructive  
 dialogue and provide a platform for civic  
 engagement in Pakistan. The University is uniquely  
 positioned to draw the knowledge and skills  
 required to address emerging challenges of the  
 twenty first century and beyond. Subscribing to the  
 cause, we contributed Rs 83 million during the  
 year, while our accumulative contribution to this  
 institution stands at nearly Rs 200 million.

• The Citizens Foundation: This is a professionally  
 managed charitable organization that builds and  
 runs schools for primary and secondary education  
 in rural and urban slum areas across Pakistan. Apart  
 from a regular contribution to TCF, the Company  
 has the privilege of donating two School  
 Campuses; one in Muzaffargarh and the other in  
 Hyderabad. During the year, the Company set up  
 an Endowment Fund in perpetuity, contributing  
 Rs 22 million to support its campus located in  
 Orangi Town. 

• Jinnah Hospital’s New Surgical Complex: The  
 Patients Aid Foundation, a non-profit organization,  
 has played a fundamental role in raising funds for  
 infrastructure and medical equipment facilities for  
 the Surgical Complex at JPMC. Construction work  
 of Pakistan’s first state-of-the-art 600-bed Surgical  
 Complex is underway at a fast pace and completion  
 is expected by the end of 2017. The Company this  
 year again donated Rs 30 million for the project,  
 with our total contribution rising to Rs 130 million.

• Indus Hospital, funded solely through charitable  
 donations, provides free-of-cost high quality  
 healthcare services to millions of patients who  
 come from across Pakistan and its neighboring  
 countries. The Indus Hospital is now on its way  
 to expanding its facilities to 1800+ bed capacity,  
 aiming to serve millions of under-served patients  
 with greater efficiency and quality. Being one  
 of its regular donors, the Company supported the  
 Indus Hospital also in construction of its new  
 building infrastructure, donating Rs. 7.5m this year,  
 with our total contribution rising to Rs 12.5 million.

• Thar Foundation is engaged in the betterment of  
 the people of Tharparkar by improving their  
 education and healthcare sectors.  
 Appreciating the efforts, the Company made a  
 contribution of Rs 1 million.

• The Company went a step further in its Community  
 Uplift Program, adding an initiative by arranging  
 Free Medical Camps for around 200 Psychiatric  
 and Epilepsy Patients under a collaboration with  
 Basic Needs Pakistan, an NGO. Every two months,  
 two camps are being arranged at two locations of our  
 neighboring area. Among other activities, the  
 Company runs Weekly Food Distribution and Free  
 Medical Camps under OPD. Since 2008, the Toyota- 
 Goth Education program continues to support 250  
 students for their education. In addition, this year a  
 Computer Lab has been established for the  
 Government Secondary School, situated at  
 Razzaqabad.
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Chairman’s Review 
The Directors of the Company endorse the contents 
of the Chairman’s Review, dealing with the matters of 
strategic nature along with the report on performance 
and effectiveness of the Board.  

Compliance Statement with the Code of Corporate 
Governance   
The “Statement of Compliance with the Code of 
Corporate Governance” (CCG) is annexed on pages 
66 to 67.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework  
The Board members are pleased to state that the 
Management of the company is committed to good 
corporate governance and complying with the best 
practices. In compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance, the Directors are pleased to state as 
follows:

• The financial statements prepared by the  
 management of the Company present fairly its  
 state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash 
 flows and changes in equity.

• Proper books of accounts of the Company have  
 been maintained.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been  
 consistently applied in preparation of the financial  
 statements and accounting estimates are based  
 on reasonable and prudent judgment.

• The Board arranged Directors Training Programs  
 for the Directors. 50% of the Directors have obtained  
 Certification under Director Training Program. 

• International Financial Reporting Standards,  
 as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in  
 preparation of the financial statements.

• The system of internal financial control is sound  
 in design and has been effectively implemented  
 and monitored.

• There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s  
 ability to continue as a going concern.

• There is no material departure from the best  
 practices of Corporate Governance as detailed in  
 the Listing Regulations.

Internal Controls
The Company has employed an effective system 
of internal controls to carry on the business of the 

Company in an orderly manner, safeguard its assets 
and secure the accuracy and reliability if its records. 
The Management supervision and reviews are an 
essential element of the system of internal controls. 
The Management has delegated the function of 
detailed examination and special reviews to the team 
of internal auditors.

The Board reviews the Company’s financial 
operations and position at regular intervals by means 
of interim accounts, reports, profitability reviews and 
other financial and statistical information. Analysis of 
budgetary control is in place and the Board reviews 
material variances with explanations and actions 
taken thereon.    

Related Party Transactions
All transactions with related parties have been 
executed at arm’s length and have been disclosed in 
the financial statements under relevant notes.

Financial Statements
The auditors of the Company, M/s. A.F. Ferguson & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, audited the Financial 
Statements of the Company and have issued an 
unqualified report to the members.

Material Changes and Commitments 
No material changes and commitments affecting 
the financial position of the Company have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company 
to which the balance sheet relates and the date of the 
report.

Directors Training Program
During the year, the company has arranged Directors 
training program for two of its directors, while 50% 
of the directors have already completed certification 
under the Directors training program.

Key Operating and Financial Data
The Key Operating and Financial Data are mentioned 
on pages 114 to 115 of the Annual Report.

Appointment of Auditors
The existing auditors, M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co., 
Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-appointment. The Directors endorse 
the recommendation of the Audit Committee for re-
appointment of A.F. Ferguson & Co, as the auditors 
for the year ending 2018. 

Investments of Retirement Benefit Funds
The value of Investments held in the retirement benefit 
funds at the year ended 30 June, 2017, is as follows:

Related Disclosures
Corporate Matters & 
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Government Levies
Government levies outstanding as at June 30, 2017 
have been disclosed in Note No. 19 to the Financial 
Statements.

Board of Directors Meetings
A total of Six (06) meetings of the Board of Directors 
were held during 12 month period from July 01, 2016 
to June 30, 2017. Name of directors of the Company, 
along with their attendance at the Board Meetings is 
as follows:

During the year, Mr. Raza Ansari resigned as Director 
with effect from October 21, 2016 and Mr. Ali Asghar 
Abbas Jamali was appointed as Director with effect 
from October 21, 2016. Furthermore, Mr. Yoshiyuki 
Matsuo resigned as Director with effect from January 
01, 2017 and Mr. Sadatoshi Kashihara was appointed 
as Director with effect from January 01, 2017. 

Mr. Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali appointed as Chief 
Executive w.e.f. January 01, 2017 after the resignation 
of Mr. Parvez Ghias in the capacity of CEO, however, 

he continues to be a Director on the Company’s  
Board.

The Board acknowledges the valuable contributions 
made by the outgoing Directors and welcomes new 
Directors to the Board.

Board Audit Committee
The Board Audit Committee comprises of five 
Non-Executive directors, out of which one is an 
Independent Director. 

The Committee meets at least once every quarter 
and assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight 
responsibilities. A total of Four (04) Board Audit 
Committee meetings were held during the 12 
month period from July 01, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 
Attendance at the Board Audit Committee Meetings 
by each Director is as follows:

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee include 
the requirements for review of annual and quarterly 
financial statements, review of internal audit reports, 
information before dissemination to Stock Exchanges 
and Consideration and recommendation for 
appointment of external auditors, in addition to other 
matters of a significant nature.

Consequent to the resignation of Mr. Raza Ansari, the 
Board Audit Committee was reconstituted from six to 
five members, with effect from October 21, 2016. 

Trading of Shares of the Company
The Directors, the Executives, and their spouses and 
minor children have not carried out trading of shares 
of the Company, other than that disclosed in the 
Pattern of Shareholding.
Pattern of Shareholding
The Pattern of Shareholding of the Company as at 
June 30, 2017, is given on pages 111 to 113.

Name of Fund
2017 

(Unaudited)
2016 

(Unaudited)

(Rupees in ‘000)

Indus Motor Company 
Limited Employees’ 
Provident Fund

726,008 633,674

Indus Motor Company 
Limited Employees’ 
Pension Fund

392,476 344,757

Director’s Name Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Ali S. Habib 6

Mr. Toshiya Azuma 6
Mr. Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali / 
  Mr. Raza Ansari (Ex-director)

6

Mr. Sadatoshi Kashihara /
  Mr. Yoshiyuki Matsuo (Ex-director)

4

Mr. Hiroyuki Fukui /
  [Mr. Y. Tokuda, Alternate]

5

Mr. Masato Yamanami /
  [Mr. K. Sotowa,  Alternate]

6

Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 3
Mr. Farhad Zulficar 3
Mr. Azam Faruque 6
Mr. Parvez Ghias 6

Director’s Name Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib 4

Mr. Farhad Zulficar 3
Mr. Azam Faruque 4

Mr. Hiroyuki Fukui /
  [Mr. Y. Tokuda,  Alternate] 3

Mr. Masato Yamanami / 
  [Mr. K. Sotowa,  Alternate] 4

Mr. Raza Ansari [Ex-Director) 1



58

Vision and Aspiration for Future
Moving forward, your Company plans to secure new 
and exciting products from Toyota that will further 
strengthen the existing product slate to provide a 
wider choice to customers and ensure sustainable 
growth and value creation.

Your Company is equally determined to achieve the 
targeted results with sharp focus on its Hoshin and 
its four principal areas. The first aims to enhance safe 
operations at the plant for the employees, contractors 
and visitors with the objective of achieving zero lost 
work-day injury; the second, works towards enriching 
the Company’s Human Resource capabilities by 
promoting Indus Motor Company as the preferred 
employer of choice leveraged through appropriate 
training and skills; in the third, efforts will be geared 
towards enhancing the Company’s image and 
ensuring customer satisfaction and finally there will be 
an attempt to sustain and augment the Company’s 
growth through cost reduction, efficient production, 
ongoing quality improvement and increased sales 
during the year.

2017-18 will be the pre-election year. In addition to 
elevated political activities, we anticipate a higher 
number of development projects to be concluded 
within the year, resulting in a higher demand of vehicles. 

Your Company has taken necessary measures to 
better address the upcoming surge in demand.

Acknowledgment
We are grateful to our customers for their continued 
patronage of our products and wish to acknowledge 
the efforts of the entire Indus team, including our staff, 
vendors, dealers and all business partners for their 
untiring efforts in these challenging times and look to 
their continued support.

We bow to the Almighty and pray for His blessings 
and guidance.

Karachi.
August 24, 2017

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali            Toshiya Azuma
       Chief Executive       Vice Chairman & Director

Forward
Moving
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Customers
Provide safe and reliable vehicles that inspire 
enthusiasm at affordable prices. Listen sincerely to 
customer voices and continue to reinvent ourselves 
through sufficient information disclosure and 
dialogue.

Employees
Create working environments for various employees 
to work proudly and with loyalty and confidence 
in fulfilling their potential, which realize their self-
growth.

Global Society/Local Communities
Reduce environmental burdens through lifecycle 
by developing various eco-friendly vehicles and 
technologies and making them prevail. As a good 
corporate citizen, respect the culture and customs of 
every nation and contribute to social development. 
Be aware of responsibilities of developing and 
producing vehicles and contribute for realization of 
new mobility society free from traffic accidents and 
congestion. 

Shareholders
Ensure sustainable growth by fostering the virtuous 
circle; 
   o Always better cars 
   o Enriching lives of communities
   o Stable base of business. 

Business Partners
Contribute for economic development of local 
communities with open stance to new suppliers 
and dealers and through sustainable growth based 
on mutually beneficial business relationshipswith 
dealers/distributors and suppliers.

Defining the ideal form of the company for each stakeholder and the outline for 
the future it should take in order to realize the Global Vision

We aim to exceed expectations and be rewarded with a smile. We will meet challenging goals by engaging the 
talent and passion of people, who believe there is always a better way” as we set out in the Global Vision. That 
means, we will sincerely listen to the voices of every stakeholder - customers, employees, business partners, 
shareholders, and global society/local communities, and respond to those expectations. The expression 
“Global Vision for Those We Serve” is our way of organizing and explaining the thoughts constituting the Global 
Vision in relation to stakeholders. It is Toyota’s resolve to meet challenging goals step by step to see the smiles 
and happiness of everyone including customers and beyond.

Those We Serve
Global Vision for
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IMC is working towards increasing 
awareness about the importance of safer 
vehicles in Pakistan and ensuring safety 
of its workers and others. We are the first 
company in Pakistan’s auto industry to 
standardize Dual SRS Airbags in all our 
passenger cars. We are also committed 
to providing a safe workplace to our 
employees and take full care of the safety 
of our contractors, suppliers, vendors and 
all members of the public.

Caring
for safety
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Fun 
Facts & Tips for Safety
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YOU NEVER DRIVE ALONE
Even if you are alone in the car, you’re still responsible for more lives than you 
think. That’s because the safety of other road users are in your hands every time 
you’re behind the wheel.

DANGERS OF TECHNOLOGY
Did you know that new technology is posing a significant danger on our roads? 1 
in 8 drivers (12%) has used the internet, social media, or other mobile phone apps 
at the wheel, half of those on a regular basis.

THE GENDER GAP
More than three-quarters (77%) of all road traffic accidents occur among men. 
Young males under the age of 25 years are almost 3 times more likely to be killed 
in a car crash than young females. We can prevent this by practicing safe driving 
habits. Guys and gals, let’s drive safely!

SAFETY MULTIPLIER
There’s a very simple way to enhance the effectiveness of airbags by 15 times-
WEAR YOUR SEATBELT.

LOVE OF YOUR LIFE
Love your car and it will love you back by giving you peace of mind. Ensure 
your car is regularly inspected by a professional and don’t postpone maintenance 
work such as a change of tires.

S IS FOR SAFETY
Keeping your child safe during a car ride is easy as ABC. Just put your child in a 
child safety seat. This can reduce the risk of fatality by 71% for infants and 54% 
for toddlers aged 1 to 4 years.
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THUMS
Head

THUMS
Body

THUMS
Joints

THUMS
Extremity

THE THUMS DIFFERENCE
Thanks to THUMS’s vital organs, Toyota has been able to recreate 
and study situations that are closer to realworld conditions. The 
result is enhanced safety in Toyota’s cars to give you and your 
passengers peace of mind.

200MPH
AIRBAG SPEED
The only thing that should be speeding is your airbag. Deployed 
at speeds of up to 200mph in 0.2 seconds, the airbag provides 
protection between you and the steering wheel, dashboard or 
windshield.

AIRBAGS ENDANGER CHILDREN
Children aged 12 and under should always ride in the rear 
because the explosive force used to deploy an airbag can be 
fatal to young children. For the same reason, a rear-facing car 
seat for infants and toddlers should not be placed in front of an 
airbag.

SAVED BY A SEATBELT
100,000 - that’s the average number of people saved by seatbelts 
every year.

BETTER IN THE MIDDLE
Give your child the safest spot in your vehicle - the center seat of 
the rear passenger bench, but only if it has a 3-point seatbelt and 
not a lap-only belt.
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SAFETY FEATURES TO KNOW
ISOFIX CHILD SEAT ANCHORS
ISOFIX child seat anchors allow you to fit a car seat directly into a 
vehicle without using a seatbelt. It is used for the safety of children so 
that child seat is installed properly.a regular basis.

VSC (VEHICLE STABILITY CONTROL)
VSC helps suppress vehicle lateral skidding when cornering or during 
emergency steering maneuvers for excellent handling and stable 
performance.

GOA BODY WITH REINFORCEMENT
GOA (Global Outstanding Assessment) is collision safety body 
consisting of an impact absorbing body structure and high integrity 
cabin. In the case of a crash, the GOA body helps in minimizing cabin 
deformation.

SEATBELT: PRETENSIONER WITH
FORCE LIMITER & ELR
The pretensioners help the seatbelts to quickly restrain the occupants 
by retracting the seatbelts when vehicle is subjected to certain types 
of severe frontal collision. Force limiters mitigate the impact applied to 
the chest, thus contributing to achieving excellent occupant restraint 
performance.minimizing cabin deformation.

DUAL SRS AIRBAGS
The SRS (Supplemental Restraint System) airbags inflate when the 
vehicle is subjected to certain types of severe impacts that may cause 
significant injury to the occupants. They work together with the seat 
belts to help reduce the risk of death or serious injury. They can help 
protect the head and chest of the driver and front passenger from 
impact with interior components. SRS front airbags do not generally 
inflate if the vehicle is involved in a side or rear collision, if it rolls over, 
or if it is involved in a low-speed frontal collision.

ABS AND EBD
Anti-lock Braking System (ABS) helps to prevent the wheels from 
locking up and skidding during hard braking, allowing you to retain 
steering control. Electronic Brake Distribution (EBD) ensures brake-
force is distributed optimally between all wheels for effective braking.
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Code of Corporate Governance
Statement of Compliance with the

This statement is being presented for the year ended June 30, 2017, to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance 
(“Code”) contained in Regulations No. 5.19.24 of listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose 
of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best 
practices of corporate governance. 

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1.  At the year ended June 30, 2017, the Board consists of the following Non-Executive, Independent and Executive 
Directors:

Non Executive Directors 
Mr. Ali S. Habib   Chairman 
Mr. Hiroyuki Fukui   Director
Mr. Masato Yamanami  Director
Mr. Farhad Zulficar   Director
Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib  Director 
Mr. Parvez Ghias   Director 

 
Executive Directors 
Mr. Toshiya Azuma   Vice Chairman 
Mr. Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali  Chief Executive 
Mr. Sadatoshi Kashihara  Senior Director Manufacturing 

 
Independent Director 
Mr. Azam Faruque 

The Independent Director meets the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1(b) of the Code of Corporate 
Governance. 

2. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed companies, 
including this Company.

3.          All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment 
of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member / broker of stock exchange, has been 
declared as a defaulter by the stock exchange.

4. Two casual vacancies occurred on the Board on October 21, 2016 and January 01, 2017, that were duly filled by 
the Directors on the same day. 

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps are taken to disseminate 
it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has adopted a Vision / Mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Company prepared by the management. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the 
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appointment 
and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief Executive (CEO) and 
other executive directors, have been taken by the Board.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board met at least once in every quarter. 
Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven 
days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9. The Board arranged Directors Training Program / Course for its directors during the year. 50% of the Directors 
have obtained Certification under the Directors’ Training Program.

10. During the year, there were no changes in the position of the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer. The 
Head of Internal Audit resigned towards the year end, while the Board approved the appointment, subsequent to 
the year end, including the remuneration and terms and condition of the employment. 
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Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali
Chief Executive

Toshiya Azuma
Vice Chairman & Director

11. The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully 
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEO and the CFO before approval by the 
Board.

13. The Directors, CEO and Executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that 
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding. 

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

15.  The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of five members, including four Non-Executive Directors 
and one Independent Director. 

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final 
results of the Company, as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the committee have been approved 
by the Board and advised to the committee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of five members, of whom 
three are non-executive directors, including the Chairman of the committee.

18. The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function within the Company who are considered to be suitably 
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. 

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the 
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and 
all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics 
as adopted by ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard.

21. The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interim / final results, and business decisions, which may 
materially affect the market price of Company’s securities, was determined and intimated to directors, executives 
and stock exchange.

22. Material / prices sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through stock 
exchange.

23. The Board of Directors have put in place a mechanism for undertaking annual evaluation of the performance of 
the Board.

24. The Company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having access 
to inside information by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper record 
including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

25. The related party transactions have been placed before the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors.

26. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have been complied with.

Karachi
August 24, 2017.



REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH BEST 
PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of 
Corporate Governance (the Code), prepared by the Board of Directors (the Board) of Indus Motor Company 
Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2017 to comply with the requirements of Rule 5.19 of the 
Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the 
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code and 
report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited 
primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company 
to comply with the Code. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 
required to consider whether the Board’s statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form 
an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures 
and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board for their review and approval, its related party transactions distinguishing 
between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and 
transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper justification for using such 
alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the 
extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were 
undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best 
practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Chartered Accountants
Dated: August 25, 2017
Karachi



AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Indus Motor Company Limited (the Company) as at June 
30, 2017 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement 
and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and 
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
 
It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, 
and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards 
and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said 
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall 
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984;

(b) in our opinion:

(i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of accounts 
and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

(ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in 
accordance with the objects of the Company;

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance 
sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement 
of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 
1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s 
affairs as at June 30, 2017 and of the profit, comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity 
for the year then ended; and

(d) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that 
Ordinance.

Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Rashid A. Jafer 
Dated: August 25, 2017
Karachi
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Balance Sheet
As at June 30, 2017

Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  6,257,927  4,918,986 
Intangible assets 3  87,517  19,291 
Long-term loans and advances 4  9,368  3,794 
Long-term investments 5  -    5,005,805 
Long-term deposits 6  9,443  9,948 
Deferred taxation 18  73,969  198,621 

 6,438,224  10,156,445 
Current Assets
Stores and spares 7  203,829  153,561 
Stock-in-trade 8  9,317,883  7,785,245 
Trade debts 9  758,872  1,131,702 
Loans and advances 10  1,652,906  1,125,490 
Short-term prepayments 11  20,839  45,520 
Accrued return 12  376,037  513,355 
Other receivables 13  402,304  191,303 
Short-term investments 14  41,487,709  33,696,804 
Cash and bank balances 15  3,221,120  2,737,569 

 57,441,499  47,380,549 

TOTAL ASSETS  63,879,723  57,536,994 

EQUITY

Share Capital 
Authorised capital
500,000,000 (2016: 500,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 16  786,000  786,000 
Reserves 17  30,410,962  26,843,609 

 31,196,962  27,629,609 
LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue  3,933  -   

Current Liabilities
Trade, other payables and provisions 19  9,682,879  10,035,145 
Advances from customers and dealers 20  22,188,881  19,127,360 
Taxation - provision less payment 22  807,068  744,880 

 32,678,828  29,907,385 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  63,879,723  57,536,994 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mohammad Ibadullah
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali
Chief Executive

Toshiya Azuma
Vice Chairman & Director
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Profit and Loss Account 
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Note  2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

Net sales 24  112,271,656  108,758,668 

Cost of sales 25  92,449,955  91,027,369 

Gross profit  19,821,701  17,731,299 

Distribution expenses 26  1,227,647  1,060,891 

Administrative expenses 27  1,053,340  930,800 

Other operating expenses 29  176,918  143,840 

 2,457,905  2,135,531 

 17,363,796  15,595,768 

Workers’ Profit Participation Fund and Workers’ Welfare Fund 30  1,418,456  1,285,491 

 15,945,340  14,310,277 

Other income 31  3,593,425  3,164,440 

 19,538,765  17,474,717 

Finance cost 32  397,998  77,271 

Profit before taxation  19,140,767  17,397,446 

Taxation 33  6,139,502  5,942,506 

Profit after taxation  13,001,265  11,454,940 

(Rupees)

Earnings per share 34  165.41  145.74 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mohammad Ibadullah
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali
Chief Executive

Toshiya Azuma
Vice Chairman & Director



72

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Note 2017 2016
---------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

Profit after taxation  13,001,265  11,454,940 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss 

 - Remeasurement loss on post employment  

      benefit obligation 28.4  (2,732)  (1,234)

 - Related deferred tax income thereon  820  383 

 (1,912)  (851)

Total comprehensive income for the year  12,999,353  11,454,089 

   

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mohammad Ibadullah
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali
Chief Executive

Toshiya Azuma
Vice Chairman & Director
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Note 2017 2016
---------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 35  20,198,939  19,013,017 
Long-term loans and advances  (5,574)  7,302 
Long-term deposits  505  (281)
Mark-up paid on advances from customers  (211,894)  -   
Deferred Revenue  3,933  -   
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund paid  (1,062,000)  (935,000)
Workers’ Welfare Fund paid  (361,179)  (291,393)
Income tax paid  (5,951,842)  (6,380,875)
Net cash inflow from operating activities  12,610,888  11,412,770 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  (3,036,599)  (1,314,969)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  49,434  23,443 
Interest received on bank deposits  1,708,701  1,406,707 
Interest received on Pakistan Investment Bonds  569,869  567,528 
Investment in listed mutual fund units  (14,324,950)  (12,400,000)
Proceeds from redemption of listed mutual fund units  14,580,868  16,377,306 
Investment in Term Deposit Receipts  (12,000,000)  (5,000,000)
Proceeds from redemption of Term Deposit Receipts  9,500,000  2,500,000 
Investment in Market Treasury Bills  (2,428,500)  (18,400,387)
Proceeds from redemption of Market Treasury Bills  5,023,450  17,736,945 
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities  (357,727)  1,496,573 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid  (9,391,010)  (7,894,662)
Net cash used in financing activities  (9,391,010)  (7,894,662)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year  2,862,151  5,014,681 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  29,737,569  24,722,888 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 36  32,599,720  29,737,569 

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mohammad Ibadullah
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali
Chief Executive

Toshiya Azuma
Vice Chairman & Director



74

Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Share Capital Reserves

TotalIssued, 
subscribed 
and paid-up

Capital Revenue

Sub-Total
Premium 
on issue 

of ordinary 
shares

General 
reserve

Unappro-
priated profit

---------------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------------------------------

Balance at July 1, 2015 786,000 196,500 16,851,050 6,201,970 23,249,520 24,035,520 

Transfer to general reserve for the year ended
June 30, 2015 appropriated subsequent to year end  -    -   3,000,000 (3,000,000)  -    -   

Transactions with owners

Final dividend @ 400% for the year ended
June 30, 2015 declared subsequent to year end  -  -  - (3,144,000) (3,144,000) (3,144,000)

1st Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2016 @ 200%  -  -  - (1,572,000) (1,572,000) (1,572,000)

2nd Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2016 @ 200%  -  -  - (1,572,000) (1,572,000) (1,572,000)

3rd Interim dividend for the year ended  
June 30, 2016 @ 200%  -    -    -   (1,572,000) (1,572,000) (1,572,000)

Total transactions with owners  -    -    -   (7,860,000) (7,860,000) (7,860,000)

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2016  -    -    -   11,454,089 11,454,089 11,454,089 

Balance at June 30, 2016 786,000 196,500 19,851,050 6,796,059 26,843,609 27,629,609 

Transfer to general reserve for the year ended
June 30, 2016 appropriated subsequent to year end  -    -   3,600,000 (3,600,000)  -    -   

Transactions with owners

Final dividend @ 400% for the year ended
June 30, 2016 declared subsequent to year end  -    -    -   (3,144,000) (3,144,000) (3,144,000)

1st Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2017 @ 250%  -    -    -   (1,965,000) (1,965,000) (1,965,000)

2nd Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2017 @ 250%  -    -    -   (1,965,000) (1,965,000) (1,965,000)

3rd Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2017 @ 300%  -    -    -   (2,358,000) (2,358,000) (2,358,000)

Total transactions with owners  -    -    -   (9,432,000) (9,432,000) (9,432,000)

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2017  -    -    -   12,999,353 12,999,353 12,999,353 

Balance at June 30, 2017 786,000 196,500 23,451,050 6,763,412 30,410,962 31,196,962 

Proposed final dividend and transfer between reserves made subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2017 are disclosed in note 45 to these 
financial statements.            

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mohammad Ibadullah
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali
Chief Executive

Toshiya Azuma
Vice Chairman & Director
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

1 GENERAL INFORMATION       
        
 Indus Motor Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company 

in December 1989 and started commercial production in May 1993. The shares of the Company are 
quoted on  the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

 The Company was formed in accordance with the terms of a Joint Venture agreement concluded 
amongst certain House of Habib companies, Toyota Motor Corporation and Toyota Tsusho Corporation 
for the purposes of assembling, progressive manufacturing and marketing of Toyota vehicles. The 
Company also acts as the sole distributor of Toyota and Daihatsu vehicles in Pakistan and has a license 
for assembling, progressive manufacturing and marketing of these vehicles in Pakistan. 

 The registered office and factory of the Company is situated at Plot No. NWZ/1/P-1, Port Qasim Industrial 
Estate, Bin Qasim, Karachi.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 

2.1.1 Statement of compliance 

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan. As per the requirements of circular No. CLD/CCD/PR(11)/2017 dated July 
20, 2017 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), companies, the 
financial year of which closes on or before June 30, 2017, shall prepare their financial statements in 
accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. Accordingly, approved 
accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by 
the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the provisions of the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984, and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the directives issued 
by the SECP. Where the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or the directives issued by 
the SECP differ with requirements of IFRS, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, or the 
directives issued by the SECP prevail.

2.1.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are 
effective in the current year

 There were certain new standards and amendments to the approved accounting standards which 
became effective during the year ended June 30, 2017. However, these are considered not to have any 
significant effect on the Company’s operations and financial reporting and accordingly have not been 
disclosed in these financial statements. 

2.1.3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are 
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

 There are certain new standards and amendments to the approved accounting standards that will 
become effective for the Company’s annual accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2017. 
However, these amendments will not have a significant impact on the financial reporting of the Company 
and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements. Further, the new standards are yet 
to be adopted by the SECP. In addition to the foregoing, the Companies Act, 2017 which is not effective 
on these financial statements, has added certain disclosure requirements which will be applicable in 
future.       
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

2.2 Accounting estimates and judgments       
        
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in application of 
the Company’s accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These 
estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the 
period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both the current and future periods. 

 Significant accounting estimates and areas where judgments were exercised by management in the 
application of accounting policies are disclosed in note 2.22 to these financial statements. 

2.3 Basis for measurement 

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that 
investments classified as financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or ‘available for sale’ and 
‘derivative financial  instruments’ have been marked to market and certain staff retirement benefits are 
carried at present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment       
        
2.4.1 Property, plant and equipment - Owned       
        
 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any, except capital work-in-progress which is stated at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.        

        
 Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight line method, whereby the 

depreciable amount of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life. The cost of leasehold land is 
amortised equally over the lease period. Depreciation is charged on additions from the month the asset 
is available for use and on disposals up to the month preceding the month of disposal. The rates of 
depreciation are stated in note 3.2  to these financial statements. 

 The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted, if 
appropriate, at each balance sheet date. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amounts or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Normal repairs and maintenance are 
charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. All other repairs and maintenance are charged 
to the profit and loss account during the financial period in which they are incurred.

 Gains and losses on sale or retirement of property, plant and equipment are included in the profit and 
loss account.

 Capital work-in-progress       
        
 All expenditures connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are 

carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are 
available for use.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

2.4.2 Intangible assets - Computer Software       
        
 Computer software are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Software costs are only capitalised 

when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the software will flow to the Company 
and the same is amortised applying the straight line method at the rates stated in note 3.2 to these 
financial statements.        

2.4.3 Impairment of non-financial assets       
        
 The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that property, 

plant and equipment and intangible assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying 
amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable 
amounts and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-
generating units are written down to their recoverable amount and the differences are recognised in the 
profit and loss account.       

2.5 Stores and spares       
        
 Stores and spares, except in transit are valued at cost, determined on a moving average basis. Provision 

is made for any slow moving and obsolete items. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice 
values plus other charges incurred thereon.       

        
2.6 Stock-in-trade       
        
 Stock-in-trade, except in transit, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Stock in transit 

are valued at cost as accumulated upto the balance sheet date, comprising invoice values plus other 
charges incurred thereon.       

        
 Cost of raw materials, own manufactured vehicles and trading stock is determined on a moving average 

basis. Cost of work-in-process is valued at material cost.      
 

 Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade is determined based on the management’s 
assessment regarding their future usability.        

        
 Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated 

cost of completion and the estimated costs necessarily to be incurred for its sale.    
   

2.7 Financial instruments       
        
2.7.1 Financial assets       
        
2.7.1.1 Classification       
        
 The management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets in accordance with 

the requirements of International Accounting Standard 39 (IAS 39) “Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement” at  the  time of purchase of financial assets and re-evaluates this classification on a 
regular basis. The financial assets of the Company are categorised as follows:     
   

 a) Financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’       
        
 Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term 

fluctuations in prices are classified as financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ category. 
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

 b) Loans and receivables      
        
 These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 

an active market. The Company’s loans and receivables comprise of trade debts, loans and advances, 
deposits, cash and bank balances and other receivables in the balance sheet.

 c) Held to maturity      
        
 These are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and where management 

has the intention and ability to hold till maturity are classified as held to maturity. These are stated at 
amortised cost.       

        
 d) Available for sale financial assets      
        
 Financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to 

needs for liquidity or changes in equity prices, are classified as ‘available for sale’. Available for sale 
financial instruments are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale 
or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held to maturity and (c) financial assets ‘at fair value 
through profit or loss’.        

2.7.1.2 Initial recognition and measurement        
        
 All financial assets are recognised at the time the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - 
the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets are initially 
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at fair value through 
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair 
value while the transaction costs associated with these financial assets are taken directly to the profit 
and loss account. 

2.7.1.3 Subsequent measurement       
        
 Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are valued as follows:     

  
 a) Financial asset ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ and ‘available for sale’    

  
 Financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ are marked to market using the closing market rates 

and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values 
of these financial assets are taken to the profit and loss account in the period in which these arise.  
     

 ‘Available for sale’ financial assets are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried 
on the balance sheet at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values of these 
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income.      
 

 b)  Financial assets classified as ‘Loans and receivables’ and ‘held to maturity’    
  

 Loans and receivables and held to maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost.   
    

2.7.1.4 Impairment       
        
 The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial 

asset is impaired.       
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

 a) Assets carried at amortised cost      
        
 A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if 

there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

 Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty or default in payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy, and 
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, 
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

 For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit 
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the profit and 
loss account. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for 
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As 
a practical expedient, the Company also evaluates impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value 
using an observable market price.

 If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement 
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in 
the profit and loss account.

 b)  Assets classified as ‘available for sale’      
        
 In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the 

fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired.    
   

 If any evidence for impairment exists, the cumulative loss is removed from equity and recognised in the 
profit and loss account. For investments, other than equity instruments, the increase in fair value in a 
subsequent period thereby resulting in reversal of impairment is reversed through the profit and loss 
account.        

2.7.1.5 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
        
 A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements 

if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the transaction and also intends either to settle 
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.7.2 Financial liabilities       
        
 All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument.       
        
2.7.3 Derecognition       
        
 Financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Company loses control of the contractual 

rights that comprise the financial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognised at the time when they are 
extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any 
gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to the profit and loss 
account.       
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2.8 Loans, advances and deposits       
        
 These are stated at cost less estimates made for any doubtful receivables based on a review of all 

outstanding amounts at the balance sheet date. Balances considered doubtful and irrecoverable are 
written off when identified.       

        
 Long term loans are initially carried at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortised cost 

would not be material in the overall context of these financial statements.     
  

2.9 Trade debts and other receivables       
        
 Trade debts and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an 

allowance for any uncollectible amounts. Other receivables are carried at cost less estimates made for 
doubtful receivables, if any.

 An estimate for doubtful trade debts and other receivables is made when collection of the full amount is 
no longer probable. Bad debts are written off when identified.      
 

2.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting       
 

 The Company designates derivate financial instruments as either fair value hedge or cash flow hedge.  
     

 Fair value hedge       
        
 Fair value hedge represents hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment. 

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded 
in the profit and loss account, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability 
that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value of the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.  
     

 Cash flow hedge       
        
 Changes in fair value of derivative hedging instruments designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised 

in the statement of comprehensive income to the extent that the hedge is effective. To the extent the 
hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value are recognised in the profit and loss account.   
    

 Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods in which the 
hedged item will affect the profit and loss account.        

        
2.11 Taxation       
        
 Current       
        
 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after considering 

rebates and tax credits available, if any, and taxes paid under the Final Tax Regime. The charge for current 
tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments 
framed / finalised during the year.       

        
 Deferred       
        
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on major temporary differences at 

the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences 
to the extent that the temporary differences will reverse in the future and taxable income will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.      
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 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part for the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised.       

        
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period 

when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or subsequently enacted at the balance sheet date.      
 

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents       
        
 For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, 

bank balances, bank deposits net of running finances and short term investments having a contractual 
maturity of three months or less. The cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and are therefore subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.      
   

2.13 Trade and other payables       
        
 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the 

consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services, whether or not billed to the Company.   
     

2.14 Provisions       
        
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 

of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.     
  

2.15 Warranty obligations       
        
 The Company recognises the estimated liability, on an accrual basis, to repair or replace products under 

warranty at the balance sheet date, and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the profit 
and loss account when the sale is recognised.       

2.16 Staff retirement benefits       
        
 Defined contribution plan - Employees Provident Fund      

 
 The Company operates a recognised provident fund for its permanent employees. Equal monthly 

contributions are made to the Fund by the Company and the employees in accordance with the rules 
of the Fund. The Company has no further payment obligation once the contributions have been paid. 
The contributions made by the Company are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are 
due.       

        
 Defined benefit / contribution plan - Employees Pension Fund      

 
 The Company also operates an approved funded pension scheme for its permanent employees.   

     
 The employee pension is governed by two sets of Rules, ‘New Rules’ - Defined contribution plan and 

‘Old Rules’ - Defined benefit plan. The New Rules are applicable to all members of the Fund with effect 
from July 1, 2008. However, the Old Rules continue to apply to all persons whose employment with the 
Company ceased before July 1, 2008 and who are entitled to pension from the Fund. In addition, the 
Old Rules also apply to existing employees who have not opted to be governed by the New Rules.   
     

 In accordance with the New Rules an actuarial balance was determined by the actuary as at June 30, 
2008 in respect of all members of the Fund who were in the service of the Company as of that date and 
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opted to be governed by the New Rules which was credited to the members’ individual accounts. With 
effect from July 2008 the Company is required to make a fixed monthly contribution to the Fund based 
on the basic salary of the employees which is credited into the individual account of each member. 
The Company has no further payment obligation once these monthly contributions have been paid to 
the Fund. Profit earned on the investments maintained by the Fund is also allocated into the individual 
account of each member.        

        
 The pension liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of members governed by the Old Rules 

is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan 
assets attributed to these members. Contributions are made to cover the pension obligations in respect 
of the members governed by the Old Rules on the basis of actuarial recommendations.   
    

 The amount arising as a result of remeasurement is recognised in the Balance Sheet immediately, with 
a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.     
   

 The Projected Unit Credit Method is used for the valuation of pension liability in respect of members 
governed by the Old Rules as at June 30, 2017, using significant assumptions as stated in note 28 of 
these financial statements.       

        
2.17 Employees’ compensated absences       
        
 The Company accounts for compensated absences on the basis of unavailed earned leave balance of 

each employee at the end of the year.       
        
2.18 Dividend distribution and transfer between reserves

 Dividend declared and appropriations to reserves made subsequent to the balance sheet date are 
considered non-adjusting events and are recognised in the financial statements in the year in which they 
are approved.       

2.19 Revenue recognition       
        
 Sales are recognised as revenue when goods are delivered and invoiced.     

  
 Return on bank deposits, term deposit receipts and mark-up on advances to suppliers and contractors 

are accounted for on an accrual basis.       
        
 Agency commission is recognised when shipments are made by the principal.    

   
 Unrealised gains / losses arising on re-measurement of investments classified as ‘financial assets at 

fair value through profit or loss’ are included in the profit and loss account in the period in which these 
arise.       

        
 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.     

   
 Income on Market Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) is accrued using the effective 

interest rate method.        
        
2.20 Foreign currency transactions and translation       
        
 Foreign currency transactions are recognised or accounted for into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange 

rate prevailing on the date of  the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are 
translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange 
gain / loss on foreign currency translations are included in income / equity along with any related hedge 
effects.       
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2.21 Functional and presentation currency       
        
 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani 
Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.     
  

2.22 Accounting estimates and judgments       
        
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the 

use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in 
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectation of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are 
significant to the Company’s financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of 
accounting policies are as follows:       

        
 i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (notes 2.4 and 3.2)     

 
 The Company reviews the useful lives of fixed assets on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in 

future years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of fixed assets with a corresponding 
effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.       

        
 ii) Provision for slow moving stores and spares (notes 2.5 and 7)     

 
 The Company exercises judgment and makes provision for slow moving stores and spares based on 

their future usability.        
        
 iii) Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade (notes 2.6 and 8)     

 
 The Company exercises judgment and makes provision for slow moving stock-in-trade based on their 

future usability and recoverable value.        
        
 iv) Provision for doubtful debts (notes 2.9 and 9)      
        
 The Company makes provision for doubtful debts when the collection of full amount is no longer 

probable.        
        
 v) Classification and valuation of investments (notes 2.7 and 14)     

 
 The Company takes into account its intention for classification of investments as mentioned in note 

2.7.1.1 at the time of purchase. The valuation of investments is done based on the criteria mentioned in 
notes 2.7.1.2, 2.7.1.3 and 2.7.1.4.       

        
 vi) Income taxes (notes 2.11 and 33)      
        
 The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by the appellate 

authorities. Instances where the Company’s view differs from the view taken by the Income Tax 
Department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its views on the items of 
material nature is in accordance with the law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities. Deferred 
tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the asset may be utilised.
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 vii) Warranty obligations (notes 2.15 and 19.2)      
        
 The Company exercises professional judgment, based on the history of warranty claims entertained, 

number of cars eligible for warranty and its internal risk assessment while making assessment of 
obligation in respect of warranty.       

        
 viii) Staff retirement benefits (notes 2.16 and 28)      
        
 The Company has post retirement benefit obligations, which are determined through actuarial valuations 

as carried out by an independent actuary using various assumptions as disclosed in note 28 to these 
financial statements.       

        
 ix) Contingencies and commitments (note 23)      
        
 The Company uses assumptions and estimates in disclosure and assessment of provision for 

contingencies as disclosed in note 23.       
        
2.23 Segment reporting        
        
 The Company uses ‘management approach’ for segment reporting, under which segment information 

is required to be presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes. Operating 
segments have been determined and presented in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The Company has determined operating segments on 
the basis of business activities i.e. manufacturing and trading activities. Segment assets have not been 
disclosed in these financial statements as these are not reported to the chief operating decision-maker 
on a regular basis.        

2.24 Deferred revenue       
        
 Amount received on account of sale of extended warranty services against vehicles is recognised initially 

as deferred revenue and credited to the profit and loss account in the relevant period covered by the 
warranty.

Note 2017 2016
------(Rupees in ‘000)------

3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT & INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3.1  6,257,927  4,918,986 
Intangible assets 3.2  87,517  19,291 

 6,345,444  4,938,277 
3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Operating assets 3.2  5,190,839  4,710,786 
Capital work-in-progress 3.5  1,067,088  208,200 

 6,257,927  4,918,986
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3.3 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Note 2017 2016
---------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

Cost of sales - own manufactured 25  1,509,613  1,491,926 
Distribution expenses 26  36,915  45,527 
Administrative expenses 27  33,974  21,946 

 1,580,502  1,559,399 

3.4 Particulars of operating assets having a net book value exceeding Rs 50,000 disposed off during 
the year are as follows:

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Particulars Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Net book 
value

Sale proceeds / 
receivable from 

insurance 
company

Gain / (loss) Mode of disposal Particulars of buyer

---------------------------(Rupees in ‘000)------------------------------

Plant and machinery
 1,791  1,213  578  10  (568)  Bidding Process M/S Shahzad & Sons, Karachi

Motor vehicles
 1,019  594  425  722  297 Employee Scheme Ms Rizwana Khatoon (Executive)
 1,749  875  874  904  30 --do-- Mr Ali Abbas Zaidi (Ex-Executive)
 1,039  242  797  926  129 --do-- Mr Wajid Bux Siddiqui (Executive)
 1,769  1,681  88  531  443 --do-- Mr Taimur Ahmad (Ex-Executive)

 990  842  148  327  179 --do-- Mr Meraj Ur Rehman (Ex-Executive)
 1,049  629  420  437  17 --do-- Mr Ali Raza Mutaqi (Ex-Executive)
 1,824  912  912  1,368  456 --do-- Mr Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali (Chief Executive)
 1,759  1,143  616  616  -   --do-- Mr Rehan Umer Soomer (Ex-Executive)
 1,749  670  1,079  1,749  670 Insurance Claim Habib Insurance Company Limited, Karachi - Related Party
 1,669  1,168  501  1,417  916 Bidding Process M/S Toyota Central Motors, Karachi

 894  745  149  630  481 --do-- M/S Toyota Southern Motors, Karachi
 1,919  320  1,599  1,505  (94) --do-- M/S Toyota Central Motors, Karachi
 1,949  585  1,364  1,725  361 --do-- M/S Toyota Central Motors, Karachi
 1,949  585  1,364  1,715  351 --do-- M/S Toyota Central Motors, Karachi
 1,949  585  1,364  1,775  411 --do-- M/S Toyota Central Motors, Karachi
 3,145  734  2,411  2,410  (1) --do-- M/S Toyota Central Motors, Karachi
 1,849  1,479  370  1,433  1,063 --do-- M/S Toyota Western Motors, Karachi
 1,865  1,306  559  1,333  774 --do-- M/S Toyota Highway Motors, Karachi
 1,865  1,306  559  1,425  866 --do-- Mr. Shamshad, Karachi
 1,749  758  991  1,511  520 --do-- Mr Syed Riaz Ahmed, Karachi
 6,278  1,883  4,395  4,834  439 --do-- M/S Noble Computer Services (Pvt.) Ltd., Karachi
 2,319  657  1,662  1,828  166 --do-- M/S Noble Computer Services (Pvt.) Ltd., Karachi

Others
Items having net book 
value of less than 
50,000 each 352,029  348,763  3,266  18,303  15,037 Various Various

2017 396,166  369,675  26,491  49,434  22,943

2016  98,127  93,394  4,733  23,443  18,710 

2017 2016
---------(Rupees in ‘000)---------

3.5 Capital work-in-progress

Civil works  204,931  41,963 
Plant, machinery, tools and equipment  826,776  115,807 
Computer and related accessories  35,381  50,430 

 1,067,088  208,200 

3.6 Movement in capital work-in-progress

Opening balance  208,200  73,483 
Additions during the year  2,659,352  1,139,549 
Transferred to operating fixed assets  (1,800,464)  (1,004,832)
Closing balance  1,067,088  208,200 
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Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

4 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good
Loans due from - secured

- Executives 4.2 & 4.3  23,121  17,971 
- Employees  6,509  5,934 

4.1  29,630  23,905 
Advances to suppliers - unsecured  2,500  - 

 32,130  23,905 
Less: Recoverable within one year shown under current assets
Loans due from - secured

- Executives 10  15,848  14,697 
- Employees 10  5,872  5,414 

Advances to suppliers - unsecured  1,042  - 
 22,762  20,111 

 9,368  3,794 

4.1 These represent house building and personal loans granted to executives and employees. These are 
granted in accordance with the terms of their employment and are secured against their balances with 
the Employees’ Provident Fund. The loans are repayable over a period of 12 to 24 months. House 
building and personal loans to management employees carry interest at the rate of 3.00% to 3.50% 
(2016: 3.00% to 3.50%) per annum. Non-management employees are entitled to personal loans which 
carry no interest.

2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

4.2 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives is as follows:

Opening balance  17,971  29,282 
Disbursements  63,996  30,815 
Repayments  (58,846)  (42,126)
Closing balance  23,121  17,971 

4.3 The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was  
Rs 40.316 million (2016: Rs 33.483 million).

2017 2016
5 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Held to Maturity 
- Government securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds  -  5,005,805 

6 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Deposits
- Utilities  7,450  7,450 
- Others  1,993  2,498 

 9,443  9,948 

7 STORES AND SPARES

Stores  180,089  164,746 
Spares  272,991  261,949 

 453,080  426,695 
Less: Provision for slow moving stores and spares  (249,251)  (273,134)

 203,829  153,561 
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8 STOCK-IN-TRADE Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

In hand

Manufacturing stock
Raw material and components  4,272,482  2,776,395 
Less: Provision for slow moving stock  (55,200)  (67,931)

 4,217,282  2,708,464 
Work-in-process  516,783  549,799 
Finished goods (vehicles – own manufactured) 8.1  420,480  453,305 
Less: Provision for slow moving stock  (1,925)  - 

 5,152,620  3,711,568 
Trading stock
Vehicles 8.1  465,278  36,213 
Less: Provision for slow moving stock  (1,733)  (545)

 463,545  35,668 

Spare parts  359,275  561,819 
Special service tools and publications  5,439  5,695 
Less: Provision for slow moving stock  (75,225)  (110,887)

 289,489  456,627 
In transit

- Raw material - manufacturing stock  3,227,738  3,187,700 
- Trading stock  184,491  393,682 

 9,317,883  7,785,245 

8.1 These include vehicles amounting to Rs 352.251 million (2016: Rs 54.6 million) held with the Company’s 
authorised dealers.

Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

9 TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED

Considered good
 - Government agencies  202,166  771,947 
 - Others  556,706  359,755 

 758,872  1,131,702 
Considered doubtful  -  22,979 

 758,872  1,154,681 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 9.1  -  (22,979)

 758,872  1,131,702 

9.1 Provision for doubtful debts 

Opening balance  22,979  14,961 
Add: Provision (reversed) / made during the year 26  (22,979)  8,018 
Closing balance  -  22,979 

9.2 As at June 30, 2017, Rs 43.679 million (2016: Rs 174.327 million) are overdue but not impaired in 
respect of trade debts. These balances relate to various customers, including government agencies, for 
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows:

2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

1 to 6 months  36,165  290 
More than 6 months  7,514  174,037 

 43,679  174,327 
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Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

10 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current portion of long-term loans and advances 
  - considered good
Loans due from - secured

- Executives 4  15,848  14,697 
- Employees 4  5,872  5,414 

 21,720  20,111 
Advances – considered good

Suppliers and contractors  31,201  34,962 
Employees  36,302  6,778 
Collector of Customs 10.1  551,001  1,040,572 
Margin with banks  1,012,682  23,067 

 1,631,186  1,105,379 

 1,652,906  1,125,490 

10.1 This represents amounts paid to the Collector of Customs in respect of the import of stock-in-trade. An 
amount of Rs 512.300 million (2016: Rs 1,005.514 million) was cleared subsequent to the year end. 

 Note 2017 2016
11 SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Rent  762  1,497 
Insurance  10,797  35,676 
Others  9,280  8,347 

11.1  20,839  45,520 

11.1 This includes Rs 5.909 million (2016: Rs 31.889 million) paid to related parties.

 Note 2017 2016
12 ACCRUED RETURN --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

- Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)  261,190  261,190 
- Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs)  114,847  252,165 

12.1  376,037  513,355 

12.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 52.739 million (2016: Rs 132.276 million) receivable from related parties.

 Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

13 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good
Warranty claims and other receivables due from related

parties – Toyota Tsusho Corporation and its affiliates 13.1  35,349  334 
Agency commission - receivable from related party - Toyota

Tsusho Asia Pacific PTE. Limited 13.2  196,567  29,769 
Warranty claims due from local vendors  5,925  7,038 
Earnest money  37,961  48,755 
Insurance claims – receivable from related party - Habib 

Insurance Company Limited 13.3  48,326  22,218 
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 13.4  37,265  3,226 
Receivable against sale of fixed assets  2,007  3,721 
Net unrealised gain on revaluation of foreign exchange

contracts - fair value hedge  17,238  49,366 
Sales tax - net  -  21,029 
Others  21,666  5,847 

 402,304  191,303 
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13.1 The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs 35.349 million 
(2016: Rs 25.661 million).

13.2 The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs 196.567 million 
(2016: Rs109.570 million).

13.3 The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs 59.484 million 
(2016: Rs 45.913 million).

Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

13.4 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund

Opening balance  3,226  2,373 
Add: Allocation for the year 30  (1,027,961)  (934,147)

 (1,024,735)  (931,774)
Less: Amount paid during the year  1,062,000  935,000 
Closing balance  37,265  3,226 

14 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Held to Maturity
-   Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 14.1  5,224,678  6,196,804 
-   Government securities - Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) 14.2  5,063,031  - 
-   Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) 14.3  31,200,000  27,500,000 

 41,487,709  33,696,804 

14.1 These securities have a tenor of 3 to 6 months and have varying maturities ranging from July 21,  2017 
to August 31, 2017. The yield on these securities is 5.99% per annum  (2016: 5.90% - 6.25% per 
annum).

14.2 These securities have a tenor of 3 years and are maturing on July 17, 2017. The yield on these securities 
ranges from 10.40% - 12.56% per annum.

14.3 As of June 30, 2017, the Company holds term deposit receipts carrying profit rates ranging between 
5.55% to 6.75% per annum (2016: 6.05% to 6.50% per annum). The term deposit receipts are due 
to mature maximum by December 15, 2017. Balances in term deposit receipts include an amount of  
Rs 10,000 million (2016: Rs 8,000 million), held with related party, Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited.

Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand  2,899  2,910 

With banks in:
- current accounts  29,118  20,307 
- deposit accounts 15.1  3,189,103  2,714,352 

 3,218,221  2,734,659 

 3,221,120  2,737,569 

15.1 Balances in deposit accounts include an amount of Rs 2,559.392 million (2016: Rs 2,199.180 
million), held with related parties namely Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited amounting to Rs 1,858.031 
million (2016: Rs 2,000.540 million) and Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited amounting to  
Rs 701.361 million (2016: Rs 198.640 million).
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16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2017 2016 2017 2016
(Number of shares in ‘000) --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

 78,600  78,600 
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully 

paid in cash  786,000  786,000 

Note 2017 2016
17 RESERVES --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Capital reserve
Premium on issue of ordinary shares  196,500  196,500 

Revenue reserves
General reserve

Balance brought forward  19,851,050  16,851,050 
Transferred from unappropriated profit  3,600,000  3,000,000 

 23,451,050  19,851,050 

Unappropriated profit  6,763,412  6,796,059 
 30,410,962  26,843,609 

18 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability arising on taxable temporary differences:
- Due to accelerated tax depreciation  -  28,899 
- Others  5,171  15,303 

Deferred tax asset arising on deductible temporary differences:
- Due to accelerated tax depreciation  (25,097)  - 
- In respect of certain provisions  (54,043)  (242,823)

Deferred tax asset - net  (73,969)  (198,621)

19 TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND PROVISIONS

Trade creditors
-   Associated undertakings / related parties  111,219  227,292 
-   Others  1,247,540  1,339,779 
Bills payable to associated undertakings / related parties  858,078  1,854,649 
Accrued liabilities 19.1  2,605,486  2,406,105 
Unclaimed dividends  167,301  126,311 
Royalty payable to associated undertakings / related parties  555,461  585,021 
Security deposits from dealers  156,550  130,550 
Retention money  21,115  17,491 
Workers’ Welfare Fund  390,625  361,309 
Technical fee  5,246  2,136 
Warranty obligations 19.2  1,070,973  938,630 
Payable to dealers  805,179  838,494 
Payable to customers  153,250  42,332 
Markup on advances from customers  117,218  - 
Sales tax – net  346,863  - 
Withholding income tax payable  336,801  355,486 
Payable to Employee Pension Fund – net 19.3  1,659  1,893 
Other government levies payable  732,315  807,667 

 9,682,879  10,035,145 
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19.1 These include an amount of Rs 34.361 million (2016: Rs 49.202 million) payable to associated 
undertakings / related parties.

Note 2017 2016
19.2 Warranty obligations -------(Rupees in ‘000)-------

Opening balance  938,630  788,374 
Add: Charge for the year 26  208,541  206,608 

 1,147,171  994,982 
Less: Utilisation during the year  76,198  56,352 
Closing balance  1,070,973  938,630 

19.3 Payable to Pension Fund – net

Receivable from Pension Fund - Defined Contribution Plan  (1,823)  - 
Payable to Pension Fund - Defined Benefit Plan 28.2  3,482  1,893 

 1,659  1,893 

20 ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND DEALERS

These represent advances received by the Company from customers and dealers in respect of sale of 
vehicles, parts and extended warranty services against vehicles.

21 SHORT-TERM RUNNING FINANCES

At June 30, 2017, the Company has unutilised short-term running finance facilities under mark-up 
arrangements aggregating Rs 3,550 million (2016: Rs 3,550 million) available from various commercial 
banks carrying mark-up rates based on 1 month KIBOR as benchmark rate plus 25 basis points  
(2016: 1 month KIBOR plus 25 basis points). The above facilities include an amount of Rs 1,500 million 
(2016: Rs 1,500 million) available from related parties.

The Company also has facilities for opening letters of credit and bank guarantees under mark-up 
arrangements as at June 30, 2017 amounting to Rs 32,000 million (2016: Rs 24,550 million) from 
various commercial banks, including Rs 13,400 million (2016: Rs 8,700 million)  available from related 
parties. The unutilised balance at June 30, 2017 was Rs 16,269 million (2016: Rs 12,342 million).

Short-term running finance and bank guarantees are secured by pari passu hypothecation charge on 
movable assets and receivables. 

22 TAXATION

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised by the Income Tax Department or 
deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 up to the year ended 
June 30, 2016.

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

23.1 The Company, during the years 2005-2006 and 2006-2007, received demand notices from the Collector 
of Customs, claiming short recovery of Rs 480.311 million in aggregate on account of customs duty 
amounting to Rs 305.426 million and sales tax amounting to Rs 174.885 million on royalty payment to 
the Joint Venture Partner, Toyota Motor Corporation. The demand has been raised based on the view 
that royalty value should be included as part of imported CKD kits which is opposed to the view of the 
Company based on factual position that the royalty pertains to locally deleted parts.
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During year ended June 30, 2008, the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal decided the 
case in the Company’s favour and accordingly, the demand to the extent of Rs 370.373 million (customs 
duty of Rs 235.775 million and sales tax of Rs 134.598 million) has been reversed. During the year ended 
June 30, 2010, an appeal was filed by the Custom Authorities before the Sindh High Court against the 
decision of the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal, which is pending for hearing.

In respect of the balance aggregate demand, the appeals are pending before the Collector of Customs 
Appeal for Rs 54.348 million and before the Appellate Tribunal for Rs 55.590 million. A similar favourable 
decision is expected out of the said pending appeals as the facts are common and involve identical 
question of law. Therefore, no provision has been made by the Company in the financial statements 
against the above mentioned sums as the management is confident that the matters will be decided in 
favour of the Company.

23.2 During the year, the Company received an Assessment Order from Punjab Revenue Authority, claiming 
that the Company was required to pay sales tax on franchise services provided in respect of the province 
of Punjab, as per the Second Schedule of the Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2012, with effect 
from October 6, 2012. The order further states that the Company is required to pay Punjab Sales Tax 
amounting to Rs 461.716 million along with penalty amounting to  Rs 111.918 million for the period from 
April 2013 to December 2016. Based on legal advice and merits of the case, the Company has obtained 
a stay order.

The management of the Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel and past history of a similar 
case, expects a favourable outcome. Hence, no provision has been made in these financial statements.

23.3 During the year, the Company received a notice from Government of Pakistan Model Customs 
Collectorate of Appraisement (East) Custom House, claiming that the Company availed self-assessment 
facility for clearing 40 units of Toyota Hiace Ambulances imported vide numerous shipments under HS 
code 87.02, whereas the ambulances should have been classified under HS code 87.03 and advised 
the Company to pay the short-levied amount of Custom Duty and Federal Excise Duty collectively 
amounting to Rs 174.726 million.

The management of the Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel, expects a favourable 
outcome. Hence no provision has been made in these financial statements.

23.4 As at June 30, 2017, the claims not acknowledged as debts by the Company amount to Rs 1,008.465 
million (2016: Rs 1,033.301 million).

Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Cases filed by the dealers  300,000  300,000 
Cases filed by government authorities  443,240  437,309 
Others 23.4.1  265,225  295,992 

23.4.2  1,008,465  1,033,301 

23.4.1Others mainly represent cases filed by the customers against the Company in various courts and are 
pending adjudication.

23.4.2The management of the Company is of the view that the Company has a strong position in these cases 
and these cases will be decided in favour of the Company.

2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

23.5 Outstanding bank guarantees  13,228,265  8,361,897 

Outstanding bank guarantees include an amount of Rs 7,397.771 million (2016: Rs 4,087.059 million) in 
respect of bank guarantees from related parties.
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Commitments

23.6 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure at June 30, 2017 amounted to Rs 1,355.781 million 
(2016: Rs 1,021.117 million).

23.7 Commitments in respect of letters of credit, other than for capital expenditure, amounted to Rs 2,508.535 
million (2016: Rs 3,568.601 million). The above letters of credit include an amount of Rs 1,010.921  
million (2016: Rs 193.290 million) availed from related parties.

23.8 Commitments in respect of land rent and maintenance charges against leasehold land from Port Qasim 
Authority as at June 30, 2017 amounted to Rs 211.362 million (2016: Rs 216.999 million).

Year 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

2017-2018  -  5,637 
2018-2019  5,919  5,919 
2019-2020  6,215  6,215 
2020-2021  6,525  6,525 
2021-2022  6,852  6,852 
2022 onwards  185,851  185,851 

 211,362  216,999 

24 OPERATING RESULTS

Manufacturing Trading Total

Note 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) -------------------------------------------------

Gross sales 24.1 125,843,970 124,675,760 9,837,795 6,371,444 135,681,765 131,047,204 

Sales tax (18,273,777) (18,111,025) (1,160,888) (666,838) (19,434,665) (18,777,863)

107,570,193 106,564,735 8,676,907 5,704,606 116,247,100 112,269,341 

Commission (3,261,695) (3,185,059) (361,291) (80,185) (3,622,986) (3,265,244)

Discounts (4,254) (3,199) (348,204) (242,230) (352,458) (245,429)

Net sales 104,304,244 103,376,477 7,967,412 5,382,191 112,271,656 108,758,668 

Cost of sales 25 87,359,064 87,480,979 5,090,891 3,546,390 92,449,955 91,027,369 

Gross profit 16,945,180 15,895,498 2,876,521 1,835,801 19,821,701 17,731,299 

Distribution expenses 26 1,082,079 956,355 145,568 104,536 1,227,647 1,060,891 

Administrative expenses 27 978,589 884,737 74,751 46,063 1,053,340 930,800 

2,060,668 1,841,092 220,319 150,599 2,280,987 1,991,691 

14,884,512 14,054,406 2,656,202 1,685,202 17,540,714 15,739,608 

Other operating expenses 29 164,363 136,722 12,555 7,118 176,918 143,840 

Workers’ Profit Participation 

   Fund and Workers’ Welfare Fund 30 1,418,456 1,285,491  -    -   1,418,456 1,285,491 

13,301,693 12,632,193 2,643,647 1,678,084 15,945,340 14,310,277 

Other income 31 3,593,425 3,164,440 

19,538,765 17,474,717 

Finance cost 32 397,998 77,271 

Profit before taxation 19,140,767 17,397,446 

24.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 2.042 million (2016: Rs. 2.567 million) and Rs. 12.294 million (2016: 
Rs. 9.633 million) in respect of export sales of own manufactured vehicles and spare parts respectively.
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24.2 Other operating expenses (excluding Workers’ Profit Participation Fund and Workers’ Welfare Fund), 
administrative expenses and distribution expenses (excluding warranty claims, pre-delivery inspection 
charges, development expenditure, transportation and running royalty), are allocated between 
manufacturing and trading activities on the basis of net sales. Warranty claims and pre-delivery inspection 
charges, development expenditure, Workers’ Profit Participation Fund and Workers’ Welfare Fund are 
allocated to manufacturing activity. Running royalty and transportation charges are allocated to trading 
activity.

Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

25 COST OF SALES

Raw materials and vendor parts consumed
Opening stock  5,964,095  4,847,819 
Purchases  81,173,819  81,396,691 
Closing stock 8  (7,500,220)  (5,964,095)

25.1  79,637,694  80,280,415 

Stores and spares consumed  1,281,744  1,309,601 
Salaries, wages and other benefits 25.2  1,297,451  1,074,766 
Rent, rates and taxes  9,584  4,967 
Repairs and maintenance  504,156  391,404 
Depreciation 3.3  1,509,613  1,491,926 
Legal and professional  4,742  7,011 
Travelling  34,523  41,615 
Transportation  5,266  2,921 
Insurance  37,630  31,046 
Vehicle running  15,697  12,769 
Communication  2,511  3,201 
Printing, stationery and office supplies  2,746  3,767 
Subscription  478  434 
Fuel and power  420,850  414,717 
Running royalty  2,190,742  2,457,420 
Supervisor fee  7,197  18,087 
Technical fee  10,292  5,278 
Staff catering, transport and uniforms  332,345  331,295 
(Reversal) of / provision for stock in trade-Manufacturing Stock  (10,806)  62,769 
(Reversal) of / provision for stores and spares  (23,883)  13,111 
Others  22,651  14,714 

 7,655,529  7,692,819 
 87,293,223  87,973,234 

Add:  Opening work-in-process  549,799  261,221 
Less: Closing work-in-process 8  (516,783)  (549,799)

 87,326,239  87,684,656 
Opening finished goods stock - own manufactured  453,305  249,628 
Closing finished goods stock - own manufactured 8  (420,480)  (453,305)
Cost of sales - own manufactured  87,359,064  87,480,979 

Opening finished goods stock - trading  997,409  929,529 
Finished goods purchased  5,142,439  3,635,425 
Closing finished goods stock - trading 8  (1,014,483)  (997,409)
Reversal of provision for slow moving stock  (34,474)  (21,155)
Cost of sales - trading  5,090,891  3,546,390 

 92,449,955  91,027,369 

25.1 This includes an amount of Rs 8.912 million (2016: Rs 7.233 million) in respect of write off against stock-
in-trade.
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25.2 Included herein is a sum of Rs 29.342 million (2016: Rs 24.060 million) in respect of charge against 
employee provident fund and Rs 21.937 million (2016: Rs 18.562 million) in respect of charge against 
employee pension fund.

Note 2017 2016
26 DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 26.1  247,627  216,816 
Rent, rates and taxes  5,096  3,629 
Repairs and maintenance  3,467  7,604 
Depreciation 3.3  36,915  45,527 
Advertising and sales promotion  505,875  342,643 
Travelling  31,546  30,673 
Vehicle running  17,391  14,868 
Communication  5,626  5,757 
Printing, stationery and office supplies  4,549  2,512 
Staff training  6,293  9,992 
Staff transport & canteen  18,439  16,890 
Subscription  298  377 
Warranty claims 19.2  208,541  206,608 
Pre-delivery inspection and service charges  58,300  49,114 
Development expenditure  12,859  28,299 
Utilities  311  184 
Transportation  60,225  51,056 
Running royalty  24,052  18,476 
(Reversal) of / provision for doubtful debts and bad debts 9.1  (22,979)  8,018 
Others  3,216  1,848 

 1,227,647  1,060,891 

26.1 Included herein is a sum of Rs 7.607 million (2016: Rs 6.464 million) in respect of charge against 
employee provident fund and Rs 0.782 million (2016: Rs 3.995 million - charge) in respect of reversal 
against employee pension fund.

Note 2017 2016
27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 27.1  392,357  334,891 
Rent, rates and taxes  2,641  2,135 
Insurance  34,818  30,043 
Repairs and maintenance  70,339  68,905 
Depreciation 3.3  33,974  21,946 
Amortisation 3.2  22,439  6,037 
Travelling  75,023  62,834 
Legal and professional  185,093  207,084 
Director fee  1,250  1,125 
Vehicle running  16,696  15,267 
Communication  14,297  15,777 
Printing, stationery and office supplies  2,587  3,222 
Staff training  87,632  81,600 
Staff transport and canteen  63,579  32,528 
Security  37,162  32,523 
Subscription  3,592  3,893 
Utilities  451  1,002 
Share registrar and related expenses  8,139  7,728 
Others  1,271  2,260 

 1,053,340  930,800 
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27.1 Included herein is a sum of Rs 9.797 million (2016: Rs 7.793 million) in respect of charge against 
employee provident fund and Rs 0.533 million (2016: Rs 4.553 million) in respect of charge against 
employee pension fund.

28 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - Approved pension fund

As mentioned in note 2.16, the Company operates an approved pension fund for its permanent employees 
who are governed under the Old Rules. The latest actuarial valuation of the Company’s pension fund, 
based on Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method, was carried out as at June 30, 2017. The pension 
fund exposes the Company to the following risks:

Mortality risks
The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’ service/
age distribution and the benefit.

Investment risks
The risk of the investment underperforming and being not sufficient to meet the liabilities.

Final salary risks
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since 
the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount increases similarly.

Withdrawal risks
The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either way 
depending on the beneficiaries’ service/age distribution and the benefit.

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the financial statements for its obligations towards 
members governed under the Old Rules as explained in note 2.16.

28.1 Principal actuarial assumptions 2017 2016
(% per annum)

Discount factor used 10.50 10.50
Expected rate of salary increase 9.50 9.50
Expected rate of return on plan assets 10.50 10.50
Expected rate of increase in long term pension 5.50 5.50

Note 2017 2016
28.2 The amount recognised in the balance sheet --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

  are determined as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligations 28.4  31,355  23,305 
Fair value of plan assets 28.3 & 28.4  (27,873)  (21,412)

 3,482  1,893 
28.3 Plan assets consist of the following:

 2017  2016 
 Quoted  Non-Quoted  Quoted  Non-Quoted 

----------------------------- Rupees ‘000 -----------------------------

Balances with banks  -  10,154  -  8,312 

Equity instruments  6,653  -  4,585  - 

Debt instruments - Government  -  11,066  -  7,890 

Others  -  -  -  625 
 6,653  21,220  4,585  16,827 
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28.4 The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:

 2017 

Present value 
of obligation

Fair value of 
plan assets

Total

-------------------(Rupees in ‘000)-------------------

At July 1  23,305  (21,412)  1,893 
Current service cost   1,348  -  1,348 
Interest expense / (income)  2,505  (2,315)  190 

 27,158  (23,727)  3,431 
Remeasurements:

- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts 
    included in interest expense  -  (2,017)  (2,017)
- Loss from change in financial assumptions  4,749  -  4,749 

 4,749  (2,017)  2,732 
 31,907  (25,744)  6,163 

Contribution  -  (2,681)  (2,681)
Benefit payments  (552)  552  - 
At June 30  31,355  (27,873)  3,482 

 2016

Present value 
of obligation

Fair value of 
plan assets

Total

-------------------(Rupees in ‘000)-------------------

At July 1  20,007  (20,366)  (359)
Current service cost   1,158  -  1,158 
Interest expense / (income)  2,232  (2,269)  (37)

 23,397  (22,635)  762 
Remeasurements:
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included 
    in interest expense  -  774  774 
- Gain from change in financial assumptions  460  -  460 

 460  774  1,234 
 23,857  (21,861)  1,996 

Contribution  -  (103)  (103)
Benefit payments  (552)  552  - 
At June 30  23,305  (21,412)  1,893 

2017 2016
28.5 Charge for defined benefit plan --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Current service cost  1,348  1,158 
Net interest expense / (income)  190  (37)

 1,538  1,121 
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28.6 The sensitivities of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions are 
as under:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in 
assumption

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

-------- (Rupees in ‘000) --------

Discount rate 1%  26,306  37,800 
Long term salary increases 1%  34,018  28,972 
Pension increase rate 1%  34,866  28,364 

The above sensitivities analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other 
assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant 
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with 
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating 
the pension liability recognised within the balance sheet.

28.7 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 17.10 years.

28.8 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation for the pension fund is as follows:

At June 30, 2017
Less than  

a year
Between  
1-2 years

Between  
2-4 years

Over 4 years Total

--------------------------------------- Rupees ‘000 ---------------------------------------

Pension  612  669  1,517  8,010  10,808 

28.9 The expected return on plan assets is determined by considering the expected long-term returns available 
on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yield on fixed interest investments are 
based on gross redemption yield as at the balance sheet date. Expected returns on equity are based on 
long-term real rates experienced in the stock market.

28.10 The expected charge for the defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2018 is Rs 1.439 million.

28.11 The charge for the year in respect of Pension amounts to Rs 21.688 million (2016 Rs 27.110 million), 
which includes Rs. 20.150 million (2016: Rs 25.990 million) in respect of members covered under New 
Rules and Rs. 1.538 million (2016: Rs 1.121 million) in respect of members covered under Old Rules.

Note 2017 2016
29 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Auditors’ remuneration 29.1  2,943  2,844 
Donations 29.2  173,975  140,996 

 176,918  143,840 
29.1 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee  1,575  1,475 
Interim review and other certifications  675  768 
Out-of-pocket expenses  693  601 

 2,943  2,844 
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Note 2017 2016
30 WORKERS’ PROFIT PARTICIPATION FUND AND --------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

     WORKERS’ WELFARE FUND

Workers’ Welfare Fund  390,625  354,976 
Workers’ Welfare Fund - for prior years  (130)  (3,632)
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 13.4  1,027,961  934,147 

 1,418,456  1,285,491 

31 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Return on bank deposits  1,571,383  1,496,094 
Interest Income on Market Treasury Bills  398,146  320,242 
Amortisation Income on Market Treasury Bills  46,078  68,604 
Interest Income on Pakistan Investment Bonds  569,869  572,667 
Amortisation Income on Pakistan Investment Bonds  57,226  51,041 
Gain on redemption of investments in listed mutual fund units  255,918  222,436 
Mark-up on advances to suppliers  -  1,111 

Income from other than financial assets
Agency commission, net of commission expense 

of Rs 16.817 million (2016: Rs 4.238 million)  219,189  88,131 
Exchange gain on agency commission and exports  888  6,181 
Gain on sale of fixed assets  22,943  18,710 
Liabilities no longer payable written back  138,588  78,272 
Freight and other charges income  277,813  224,574 
Certification income  23,805  8,327 
Exchange gain - net  279  - 
Others  11,300  8,050 

 3,593,425  3,164,440 

29.2 Donations

Donations include the following in which a Director or his spouse is interested:

Name of 
Director(s)

Interest
in Donee

Name and address of Donee
2017 2016

----(Rupees in ‘000)----

1. Mr. Ali S. Habib Trustee Mohamedali Habib Welfare Trust,  2,250  3,868 
2nd Floor, Siddiq Sons Tower,
Jinnah Co-operative Housing Society,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

2. Mr. Mohammedali R. Habib Trustee Habib Education Trust,  6,700  1,500 
  and Mr. Ali S. Habib 4th Floor, UBL Building,

I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

3. Mr. Mohammedali R. Habib Director Habib University Foundation,  83,216  40,000 
and Mr. Ali S. Habib Block 18. Gulistan-e-Jauhar

University Avenue, Off
Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi.
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Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

32 FINANCE COST

Mark-up on advances from customers  329,112  - 
Bank charges - net  68,886  62,332 
Exchange loss - net  -  14,939 

 397,998  77,271 

33 TAXATION

Current  - for the year  6,119,915  6,189,385 
             - for prior years  (105,885)  (53,936)

 6,014,030  6,135,449 

Deferred - for the year  125,472  (192,943)
33.1  6,139,502  5,942,506 

33.1 Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit 

Profit before taxation  19,140,767  17,397,446 

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 31% (2016: 32%)  5,933,638  5,567,183 
Tax effect of permanent differences and super tax  719,476  575,041 
Tax effect of income taxable at lower rates and tax credit on
  plant & machinery  (15,932)  (27,042)
Tax effect of income assessed under final tax regime  (384,885)  (113,636)
Tax effect of change in tax rate for future periods  (6,910)  (6,047)
Prior years reversal  (105,885)  (53,936)
Others  -  943 

 6,139,502  5,942,506 

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE

34.1 Basic

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing the net profit for the year after taxation by the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Profit after taxation  13,001,265  11,454,940 

(Number of shares in ‘000)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year  78,600  78,600 

(Rupees)

Basic earnings per share  165.41  145.74 

34.2 Diluted

There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2017 and 2016.
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Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

35 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Profit before taxation  19,140,767  17,397,446 

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation  1,580,502  1,559,399 
Amortisation  22,439  6,037 
(Reversal) of / provision for doubtful debts and bad debts  (22,979)  8,018 
Gain on sale of fixed assets  (22,943)  (18,710)
Gain on redemption of investments in listed mutual fund units  (255,918)  (222,436)
Net unrealised loss / (gain) on revaluation of creditors and
  foreign exchange contracts  32,128  (35,003)
Return on bank deposits  (1,571,383)  (1,496,094)
Interest Income on Pakistan Investment Bonds  (569,869)  (572,667)
Amortisation Income on Pakistan Investment Bonds  (57,226)  (51,041)
Interest Income on Market Treasury Bills  (398,146)  (320,242)
Amortisation Income on Market Treasury Bills  (46,078)  (68,604)
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund  1,027,961  934,147 
Workers’ Welfare Fund  390,495  351,344 
Mark-up on advances from customers  329,112  - 
Working capital changes 35.1  620,077  1,541,423 

 20,198,939  19,013,017 
35.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares  (50,268)  25,038 
Stock-in-trade  (1,532,638)  (1,634,797)
Trade debts  395,809  (691,970)
Loans and advances  (527,416)  95,084 
Short-term prepayments  24,681  (26,601)
Other receivables  (209,091)  12,310 

 (1,898,923)  (2,220,936)
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables  (542,521)  827,917 
Advances from customers and dealers  3,061,521  2,934,442 

 2,519,000  3,762,359 
 620,077  1,541,423 

36 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprises of the following balance sheet 
amounts:

Note 2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Cash and bank balances 15 3,221,120 2,737,569 
Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) 14 24,200,000 23,000,000 
Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 14 5,178,600 4,000,000 

32,599,720 29,737,569 
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37.1 The Chief Executive, Directors and some Executives have been provided free use of the Company 
maintained cars, residential telephones and club facilities.

37.2 During the year, an amount of Rs. 1.250 million (2016: Rs. 1.125 million) has been paid to a  
Non-Executive director, as fee for attending board and other meetings.

38 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS / RELATED PARTIES

The associated undertakings / related parties comprise of associated companies, staff retirement funds 
and key management personnel. Transactions carried out with associated undertakings / related parties 
during the year are as follows:

2017 2016
--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

With associated undertakings / related parties:
Sales  241,075  399,823
Purchases  54,005,416  48,374,070
Insurance premium  86,755  83,837
Agency commission  236,006  92,370
Running royalty  2,206,439  2,477,742
Rent expense  2,120  2,016
Return on bank deposits  714,725  708,052
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets / insurance claim  2,505  1,220
Supervisor fee  7,197  18,087
Bank charges  56,155  50,396
LC charges  6,349  8,319

With key management personnel:
-   Salaries and benefits  163,799  140,345
-   Post employment benefits  9,873  7,442
-   Sale of fixed assets  1,394  2,835

38.1 Contribution to and accruals in respect of staff retirement benefits are made in accordance with actuarial 
valuations / terms of contribution plan and disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements.

38.2 The status of outstanding balances with associated undertakings / related parties as at June 30, 2017 
and donations made during the year ended June 30, 2017 are included in the respective notes to the 
financial statements.

37 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2017 2016
Chief Directors Executives Chief Directors ExecutivesExecutive Executive

---------------------------------- (Rupees in ‘000) -----------------------------------
Managerial
  remuneration*  33,051  12,973  508,523  29,859  11,014  447,896 
Retirement benefits  1,421  -  37,306  -  -  32,818 
Medical expenses  147  -  -  11  -  - 

 34,619  12,973  545,829  29,870  11,014  480,714 

Number of persons  1  2  206  1  2  167 

*This includes bonus, house rent, utilities and other allowances.
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2017 2016
39 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION  Number of units 

Capacity based on double shift basis 54,800 54,800
Production 59,945 64,096

The Company has been operating on a double shift basis from March 2003 based on market demand. 
The capacity has been calculated based on average normal working hours in a year, whereas actual 
production may vary in response to market demand. During the year, the Company operated the plant 
for more than normal working hours.

2017 2016
Un-audited Un-audited

--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------
40 DISCLOSURE RELATING TO PROVIDENT FUND

(i) Size of the Fund  789,317  702,682 
(ii) Cost of investments made  690,243  607,713 
(iii) Percentage of investment made 87.45% 86.48%
(iv) Fair value of investments  726,008  633,674 

Breakup of investments 2017  2016 
 Rupees in ‘000 Percentage  Rupees in ‘000 Percentage

Government Securities  549,789 75.73%  474,241 74.84%
Listed Securities  176,219 24.27%  159,433 25.16%

 726,008 100.00%  633,674 100.00%

Investments out of Provident Fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 227 of 
the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2017 2016
 (Number of staff) 

41 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as at June 30 2,849 2,765
Average number of employees during the year 2,842 2,565

42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

------------- As at June 30, 2017 -------------
Loans and 
receivables

 Held to 
maturity  Total 

---------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------
Assets
Loans and advances  1,078,614  -  1,078,614 
Long term deposits  9,443  -  9,443 
Trade debts  758,872  -  758,872 
Accrued return  376,037  -  376,037 
Other receivables  365,039  -  365,039 
Investments  -  41,487,709  41,487,709 
Cash and bank balances  3,221,120  -  3,221,120 

 5,809,125  41,487,709  47,296,834 

----- As at June 30, 2017-----
 Financial 

liabilities at 
amortised cost 

 Total 

--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------
Liabilities 
Trade, other payables and provisions  7,874,616  7,874,616 

 7,874,616  7,874,616 
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------------- As at June 30, 2016 -------------
Loans and 
receivables

 Held to 
maturity 

 Total 

---------------- (Rupees in ‘000) ----------------
Assets
Loans and advances  53,750  -  53,750 
Long term deposits  9,948  -  9,948 
Trade debts  1,131,702  -  1,131,702 
Accrued return  513,355  -  513,355 
Other receivables  167,048  -  167,048 
Investments  -  38,702,609  38,702,609 
Cash and bank balances  2,737,569  -  2,737,569 

 4,613,372  38,702,609  43,315,981 

----- As at June 30, 2016 -----
 Financial 

liabilities at 
amortised 

cost 

 Total 

--------(Rupees in ‘000)--------

Liabilities 
Trade, other payables and provisions  8,508,790  8,508,790 

 8,508,790  8,508,790 

43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s activities expose it to certain financial risks. Such financial risks emanate from various 
factors that include, but are not limited to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company currently finances its operations through equity and management of working capital 
with a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk. The 
Company’s risk management policies and objectives are as follows:

43.1 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation and causes 
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring 
credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the 
creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business 
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations 
to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit 
risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular 
industry.

Credit risk arises from derivative financial instruments, investments (except for the investments in 
Government securities) and balances with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures 
to customers, including trade receivables and committed transactions. Out of the total financial assets 
of Rs 47,296.834 million (2016: Rs 43,315.981 million), the financial assets which are subject to credit 
risk amounted to Rs 37,006.226 million (2016: Rs 32,110.462 million), including trade receivables from 
government agencies.

Out of the total receivable from customers amounting to Rs 758.872 million (2016: Rs 1,131.702 million), 
an amount of Rs 202.166 million (2016: Rs 771.947 million) relates to direct customers. 
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Out of the total bank balance and term deposit receipt of Rs 34,418.221 million (2016: Rs 30,234.659 
million) placed with banks, amounts aggregating to Rs 28,903.643 million (2016: Rs 27,939.675 million) 
have been placed with banks having credit rating of AA+ and above, whereas the remaining amounts 
are placed with banks having long term minimum credit rating of AA.

Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with its counterparties and after giving due 
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non–performance by 
these counter parties on their obligations to the Company.

For trade receivables, internal risk assessment process determines the credit quality of the customer, 
taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set 
based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the management. The utilisation of 
credit limits is regularly monitored. Accordingly, the management believes that the credit risk is minimal 
and in the opinion of the management, the Company is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 

43.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its funding requirements. To guard 
against the risk, the Company has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in 
mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents. The maturity profile is monitored to 
ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. The management forecasts the liquidity of the Company on the 
basis of expected cash flow considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet such risk. 

The maturity profile of the Company’s liability based on contractual maturities is disclosed in note 43.3.2 
to these financial statements. 

43.3 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, 
interest rate risk and other price risk.

43.3.1 Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered 
into in foreign currencies. The Company manages its exposure against foreign currency risk by entering 
into foreign exchange contracts where considered necessary.

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered 
into in foreign currencies. The Company primarily has foreign currency exposures in US Dollars (USD) 
and Japanese Yen (JPY). The net foreign currency exposure at June 30, 2017 is USD 10.588 million 
(2016: USD 12.868 million) and JPY 99.685 million (2016: JPY 1,093.347 million).

43.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes 
in the market interest / mark-up rates. Sensitivity to interest / mark-up rate risk arises from mismatches 
of financial assets and financial liabilities that mature or reprice in a given period. The Company manages 
these mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can 
be adjusted. The Company is exposed to interest / mark-up rate risk in respect of the following:
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-------------------------------------------------------------2017-------------------------------------------------------------

Effective 
interest/ 

mark-up rate

Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing Total

Maturity upto 
one year

Maturity after 
one year

Sub-total
Maturity upto 

one year
Maturity after 

one year
Sub-total

June 30, 
2017

% ------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------------------------------------
On balance sheet financial instruments

Assets 
Loans and advances 3.00-3.50 16,932 7,910 24,842 1,053,772  - 1,053,772 1,078,614 
Long term deposits  -  -  -  -  - 9,443 9,443 9,443 
Trade debts  -  -  -  - 758,872  - 758,872 758,872 
Accrued return  -  -  -  - 376,037  - 376,037 376,037 
Other receivables  -  -  -  - 365,039  - 365,039 365,039 
Investments  5.55-12.56 41,487,709  - 41,487,709  -  -  - 41,487,709 
Cash and bank balances  3.50-6.35 3,189,103  - 3,189,103 32,017  - 32,017 3,221,120 

44,693,744 7,910 44,701,654 2,585,737 9,443 2,595,180 47,296,834 
Liabilities 
Trade, other payables and provisions  -  -  -  - 7,874,616  - 7,874,616 7,874,616 

 -  -  - 7,874,616  - 7,874,616 7,874,616 

----------------------------------------------------------------2016----------------------------------------------------------------

Effective 
interest/ 

mark-up rate

Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing Total

Maturity upto 
one year

Maturity after 
one year

Sub-total
Maturity upto 

one year
Maturity after 

one year
Sub-total

June 30, 
2016

% ------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in ‘000) ------------------------------------------------
On balance sheet financial instruments

Assets
Loans and advances 3.00-3.50 15,837 3,793 19,630 34,120  - 34,120 53,750 
Long term deposits  -  -  -  -  - 9,948 9,948 9,948 
Trade debts  -  -  -  - 1,131,702  - 1,131,702 1,131,702 
Accrued return  -  -  -  - 513,355  - 513,355 513,355 
Other receivables  -  -  -  - 167,048  - 167,048 167,048 
Investments  5.90-12.56 33,696,804 5,005,805 38,702,609  -  -  - 38,702,609 
Cash and bank balances  3.00-6.20 2,714,352  - 2,714,352 23,217  - 23,217 2,737,569 

36,426,993 5,009,598 41,436,591 1,869,442 9,948 1,879,390 43,315,981 
Liabilities
Trade, other payables and provisions  -  -  -  - 8,508,790  - 8,508,790 8,508,790 

 -  -  - 8,508,790  - 8,508,790 8,508,790 

a)  Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Presently, the Company does not hold any variable rate financial instruments.

b)  Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments

Fixed rate instruments comprise of Pakistan Investment Bonds, Market Treasury Bills, TDRs, balances 
with banks and loans to employees. The income from these financial assets are substantially independent 
of changes in market interest rates except for changes, if any, as a result of fluctuation in respective fair 
value. The Company’s income from these investments / financial assets does not have any fair value 
impact since these are classified as either held to maturity or loans and receivables.

43.3.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result 
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether 
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors 
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 
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43.3.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between knowledgeable 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values 
and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without 
any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction 
on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are traded in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on 
the reporting date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not 
significantly different from carrying values as the items are either short term in nature or periodically 
repriced.

International Financial Reporting Standard 7, ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure’ requires the Company 
to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs 
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

-  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

-  inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
    either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) (level 2); and

- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable  
    inputs) (level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety 
shall be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
in its entirety.

Investment of the Company carried at fair value are categorised as follows:

---- As at June 30, 2017 ---- ---- As at June 30, 2016 ---- 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

------------------------- Rupees in ‘000 ------------------------- 
Financial assets / (liabilities) ‘at fair value
  through profit or loss’
 - Derivative financial instruments  -  - 17,238  -  - 49,366 

44 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and 
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company is currently financing 
its operations through equity and working capital. The Company has no gearing risk in the current and 
prior year.



110

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

45 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 24, 2017 has proposed a cash dividend in respect 
of the year ended June 30, 2017 of Rs 35 (2016: cash dividend of Rs 40) per share. This is in addition 
to the interim cash dividend of Rs 80 (2016: Rs 60) per share resulting in a total dividend for the year of 
Rs 115 (2016: Rs 100) per share. The Directors have also announced appropriation of Rs 4,000 million 
(2016: Rs 3,600 million) to general reserve. These appropriations will be approved in the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 do not include the 
effect of these appropriations which will be accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending 
June 30, 2018.

46 GENERAL

Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees.

47 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of 
better presentation and comparison, the effects of which are not material.

48 DATE OF AUTHORISATION
 
These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 24, 2017 by the Board of Directors of 
the Company.

Mohammad Ibadullah
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali
Chief Executive

Toshiya Azuma
Vice Chairman & Director



Indus Motor Company Ltd.

111Annual Report 2017

Pattern of Shareholding
As at June 30, 2017

Number of Shareholders / Folios Shareholdings’Slab Number of Total Shares Held

770  1 to  100  39,295 
2220  101 to  500  998,492 
300  501 to  1,000  270,447 
354  1,001 to  5,000  856,861 
75  5,001 to  10,000  561,013 
31  10,001 to  15,000  388,028 
21  15,001 to  20,000  376,028 
17  20,001 to  25,000  377,391 
15  25,001 to  30,000  421,570 
7  30,001 to  35,000  221,842 
14  35,001 to  40,000  534,878 
5  40,001 to  45,000  212,800 
2  45,001 to  50,000  98,500 
5  50,001 to  55,000  264,113 
6  55,001 to  60,000  337,169 
1  60,001 to  65,000  61,480 
5  65,001 to  70,000  340,520 
1  70,001 to  75,000  74,550 
3  75,001 to  80,000  235,522 
1  90,001 to  95,000  93,882 
1  95,001 to  100,000  100,000 
1  100,001 to  105,000  105,000 
1  105,001 to  110,000  105,415 
1  110,001 to  115,000  112,740 
1  115,001 to  120,000  119,830 
1  125,001 to  130,000  130,000 
2  130,001 to  135,000  269,380 
1  150,001 to  155,000  154,140 
2  160,001 to  165,000  322,425 
1  180,001 to  185,000  184,130 
1  185,001 to  190,000  187,830 
1  200,001 to  205,000  203,842 
1  210,001 to  215,000  210,680 
1  215,001 to  220,000  216,540 
1  240,001 to  245,000  242,810 
1  250,001 to  255,000  254,800 
4  255,001 to  260,000  1,032,667 
1  270,001 to  275,000  272,384 
1  275,001 to  280,000  276,660 
1  350,001 to  355,000  353,270 
1  375,001 to  380,000  378,190 
1  415,001 to  420,000  415,914 
1  420,001 to  425,000  423,280 
1  430,001 to  435,000  433,907 
1  450,001 to  455,000  451,646 
1  550,001 to  555,000  552,685 
1  595,001 to  600,000  600,000 
1  700,001 to  705,000  701,714 
1  1,275,001 to  1,280,000  1,276,010 
1  4,890,000 to  4,890,000  4,890,000 
1  9,820,001 to  9,825,000  9,825,000 
1  19,645,001 to  19,650,000  19,650,000 
1  27,382,730 to  27,382,730  27,382,730 

3891  78,600,000 
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No. Categories Of Shareholders
Number Of 
Shares Held 

Category 
Wise No. Of 
Folios / CDC 

Accounts

Category 
Wise Shares 

Held
Percentage

1 DIRECTORS ,CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND   7  306,662  0.39 
THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN
MR. ALI S. HABIB  135,000 
MR. MOHAMEDALI R. HABIB 130,000
MR. FARHAD ZULFICAR  2,000 
MR. PARVEZ GHIAS  561 
MR. AZAM FARUQUE  500 
MR. ALI ASGHAR ABBAS JAMALI  38,000 
MRS. MUNIZEH ALI HABIB  601 

2 ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES 3  4,933,810  6.28 
HABIB INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED  43,810 
THAL LIMITED  4,890,000 

3 EXECUTIVES 5  3,974  0.01 
4 PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS 5  573,873  0.73 

5
BANKS, DFIs, NBFIs, INSURANCE COMPANIES, TAKAFUL, 29  1,226,704  1.56 
MODARABAS & PENSION FUNDS 

6 MUTUAL FUNDS  49  2,458,773  3.13 
CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND  210,680 
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND  2,869 
CDC - TRUSTEE AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND  7,094 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND  22,600 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP STOCK FUND  37,900 
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND  31,660 
CDC - TRUSTEE APF-EQUITY SUB FUND  4,460 
CDC - TRUSTEE ASKARI ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  6,100 
CDC - TRUSTEE ASKARI EQUITY FUND  6,000 
CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND  61,480 
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  3,500 
CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL BALANCED GROWTH FUND  8,000 
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND  1,500 
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND  66,180 
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND  6,840 
CDC - TRUSTEE JS LARGE CAP. FUND  19,000 
CDC - TRUSTEE JS PENSION SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY ACCOUNT  7,200 
CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON EQUITY FUND  79,360 
CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON ISLAMIC TACTICAL FUND  1,596 
CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON TACTICAL FUND  13,006 
CDC - TRUSTEE MCB PAKISTAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  14,240 
CDC - TRUSTEE MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND  184,130 
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND  21,730 
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND  203,842 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND  76,630 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  134,380 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND  74,550 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA MULTI ASSET FUND  22,420 
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND  242,810 
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST  451,646 
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND  119,830 
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND  55,300 
CDC - TRUSTEE PAKISTAN CAPITAL MARKET FUND  5,590 
CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC GROWTH FUND  53,660 
CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC INVESTMENT FUND  28,320 
CDC - TRUSTEE PIML ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  1,500 
CDC - TRUSTEE PIML ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND  1,500 
CDC - TRUSTEE PIML STRATEGIC MULTI ASSET FUND  1,500 
CDC - TRUSTEE PIML VALUE EQUITY FUND  1,500 
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  7,000 
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND  4,400 
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND  42,820 
CDC - TRUSTEE UNIT TRUST OF PAKISTAN  18,620 
CDC-TRUSTEE NAFA ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  39,330 
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE JS GROWTH FUND  18,360 
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE JS VALUE FUND  14,500 
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ADVANTAGE ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  9,500 
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  11,000 
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE JS CAPITAL PROCTECTED FUND  1,140 
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7 GENERAL PUBLIC  4,651,837  5.92 

Local  3,153 

Foreign  474 

8 FOREIGN INVESTORS / COMPANIES 75  61,593,624  78.36 

Holding 5% or more voting interest

   OVERSEAS PAKISTAN INVESTORS AG  27,382,730 

   TOYOTA MOTOR CORPORATION  19,650,000 

   TOYOTA TSUSHO CORPORATION  9,825,000 

9 OTHERS 91  2,850,743  3.63 

TOTAL  3,891  78,600,000  100.00 

Detail of trading of shares by Executives / Directors during the period from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

Name of Executive / Director No. of shares sold

Mr. Parvez Ghias  4,000 
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Financial Summary 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Income Statement
Net revenue Rs in ‘000 112,271,656 108,758,668  96,516,322  57,063,622  63,829,075  76,962,642  61,702,677  60,093,139  37,864,604  41,423,843 
Gross profit Rs in ‘000  19,821,701  17,731,299  14,244,230  5,793,582  5,857,037  6,561,854  4,089,135  4,856,514  2,324,186  3,848,487 
Profit before taxation Rs in ‘000  19,140,767  17,397,446  14,132,569  5,016,497  4,969,775  6,312,267  4,011,455  5,242,539  2,046,013  3,541,711 
Profit after taxation Rs in ‘000  13,001,265  11,454,940  9,110,251  3,873,452  3,357,545  4,302,715  2,743,384  3,443,403  1,385,102  2,290,845 
Dividends Rs in ‘000  9,039,000  7,860,000  6,288,000  2,318,700  1,965,000  2,515,200  1,179,000  1,179,000  786,000  825,300 

Balance Sheet
Share capital Rs in ‘000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000 
Reserves Rs in ‘000  30,410,962  26,843,609  23,249,520  19,129,652  16,907,291  16,227,858  13,333,648  11,801,615  9,510,973  8,650,340 
Fixed Assets Rs in ‘000  6,345,444  4,938,277  5,193,477  6,033,264  2,742,140  3,472,906  4,225,710  3,324,333  3,934,473  4,033,762 
Net current assets Rs in ‘000  24,762,671  17,473,164  13,861,221  14,062,278  14,775,801  13,693,056  10,326,779  9,566,387  6,830,469  5,885,153 
Long term liabilities Rs in ‘000  3,933    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Investor Information
Gross profit ratio % age 17.66 16.30 14.76 10.15 9.18 8.53 6.63 8.08 6.14 9.29
Net profit ratio % age 11.58 10.53 9.44 6.79 5.26 5.59 4.45 5.73 3.66 5.53
Earnings per share Rs 165.41 145.74 115.91 49.28 42.72 54.74 34.90 43.81 17.62 29.15
Inventory turnover Times 11 13 15 8 8 11 11 12 11 14
Debt collection period Days 3 3 4 10 8 7 9 10 14 9
Average fixed assets turnover Times 19.90 21.47 17.19 13.01 18.32 19.99 16.34 16.56 9.50 13.52
Breakup value per share Rs 396.91 351.52 305.80 253.38 225.11 216.46 179.64 160.15 131.00 120.06
Market price per share 

- as on June 30 Rs 1,793.60 939.54 1,249.00 537.92 311.00 245.08 220.00 262.38 107.72 200.05
- High value during the period Rs 2,110.00 1,313.00 1,320.00 549.00 364.60 305.00 309.73 278.00 198.05 419.00
- Low value during the period Rs 935.00 884.75 520.00 300.00 237.00 187.00 205.51 107.10 50.40 171.96

Price earning ratio Times 10.84 6.45 10.78 10.92 7.28 4.48 6.30 5.99 6.11 6.86
Dividend per share Rs 115.00 100.00  80.00  29.50  25.00 32.00 15.00 15.00 10.00 10.50
Dividend yield % age 6.41 10.64  6.41  5.48  8.04 13.06 6.82 5.72 9.28 5.25
Dividend payout % age 69.52 68.62  69.02  59.86  58.52 58.46 42.98 34.24 56.75 36.03
Dividend cover Times 1.44 1.46  1.45  1.67  1.71 1.71 2.33 2.92 1.76 2.78
Return on equity % age 41.67 41.46 37.90 19.45 18.98 25.29 19.43 27.36 13.45 24.28
Debt to equity Ratio 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1
Current ratio Ratio 1.76:1 1.58 : 1 1.53 : 1 3.35 : 1 2.99 : 1 2.32 : 1 1.84 : 1 1.67 : 1 1.69 : 1 2.56 : 1 

Other Information
Units sold Nos.  60,586  64,584  57,387  34,470  38,517  55,060  50,943  52,063  35,276  50,802 
Units Produced Nos.  59,945  64,096  56,888  33,012  37,405  54,917  50,759  50,557  34,298  48,222 
Manpower Nos.  2,849  2,765  2,322  2,091  2,225  2,292  2,187  1,948  1,893  2,030 
Contribution to National Exchequer Rs in ‘000 38,959,490 37,325,754 32,076,453 19,261,559 21,267,303 24,725,706 22,043,581 20,332,421 14,143,597 14,478,096
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Financial Summary 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Income Statement
Net revenue Rs in ‘000 112,271,656 108,758,668  96,516,322  57,063,622  63,829,075  76,962,642  61,702,677  60,093,139  37,864,604  41,423,843 
Gross profit Rs in ‘000  19,821,701  17,731,299  14,244,230  5,793,582  5,857,037  6,561,854  4,089,135  4,856,514  2,324,186  3,848,487 
Profit before taxation Rs in ‘000  19,140,767  17,397,446  14,132,569  5,016,497  4,969,775  6,312,267  4,011,455  5,242,539  2,046,013  3,541,711 
Profit after taxation Rs in ‘000  13,001,265  11,454,940  9,110,251  3,873,452  3,357,545  4,302,715  2,743,384  3,443,403  1,385,102  2,290,845 
Dividends Rs in ‘000  9,039,000  7,860,000  6,288,000  2,318,700  1,965,000  2,515,200  1,179,000  1,179,000  786,000  825,300 

Balance Sheet
Share capital Rs in ‘000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000  786,000 
Reserves Rs in ‘000  30,410,962  26,843,609  23,249,520  19,129,652  16,907,291  16,227,858  13,333,648  11,801,615  9,510,973  8,650,340 
Fixed Assets Rs in ‘000  6,345,444  4,938,277  5,193,477  6,033,264  2,742,140  3,472,906  4,225,710  3,324,333  3,934,473  4,033,762 
Net current assets Rs in ‘000  24,762,671  17,473,164  13,861,221  14,062,278  14,775,801  13,693,056  10,326,779  9,566,387  6,830,469  5,885,153 
Long term liabilities Rs in ‘000  3,933    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Investor Information
Gross profit ratio % age 17.66 16.30 14.76 10.15 9.18 8.53 6.63 8.08 6.14 9.29
Net profit ratio % age 11.58 10.53 9.44 6.79 5.26 5.59 4.45 5.73 3.66 5.53
Earnings per share Rs 165.41 145.74 115.91 49.28 42.72 54.74 34.90 43.81 17.62 29.15
Inventory turnover Times 11 13 15 8 8 11 11 12 11 14
Debt collection period Days 3 3 4 10 8 7 9 10 14 9
Average fixed assets turnover Times 19.90 21.47 17.19 13.01 18.32 19.99 16.34 16.56 9.50 13.52
Breakup value per share Rs 396.91 351.52 305.80 253.38 225.11 216.46 179.64 160.15 131.00 120.06
Market price per share 

- as on June 30 Rs 1,793.60 939.54 1,249.00 537.92 311.00 245.08 220.00 262.38 107.72 200.05
- High value during the period Rs 2,110.00 1,313.00 1,320.00 549.00 364.60 305.00 309.73 278.00 198.05 419.00
- Low value during the period Rs 935.00 884.75 520.00 300.00 237.00 187.00 205.51 107.10 50.40 171.96

Price earning ratio Times 10.84 6.45 10.78 10.92 7.28 4.48 6.30 5.99 6.11 6.86
Dividend per share Rs 115.00 100.00  80.00  29.50  25.00 32.00 15.00 15.00 10.00 10.50
Dividend yield % age 6.41 10.64  6.41  5.48  8.04 13.06 6.82 5.72 9.28 5.25
Dividend payout % age 69.52 68.62  69.02  59.86  58.52 58.46 42.98 34.24 56.75 36.03
Dividend cover Times 1.44 1.46  1.45  1.67  1.71 1.71 2.33 2.92 1.76 2.78
Return on equity % age 41.67 41.46 37.90 19.45 18.98 25.29 19.43 27.36 13.45 24.28
Debt to equity Ratio 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1 0 : 1
Current ratio Ratio 1.76:1 1.58 : 1 1.53 : 1 3.35 : 1 2.99 : 1 2.32 : 1 1.84 : 1 1.67 : 1 1.69 : 1 2.56 : 1 

Other Information
Units sold Nos.  60,586  64,584  57,387  34,470  38,517  55,060  50,943  52,063  35,276  50,802 
Units Produced Nos.  59,945  64,096  56,888  33,012  37,405  54,917  50,759  50,557  34,298  48,222 
Manpower Nos.  2,849  2,765  2,322  2,091  2,225  2,292  2,187  1,948  1,893  2,030 
Contribution to National Exchequer Rs in ‘000 38,959,490 37,325,754 32,076,453 19,261,559 21,267,303 24,725,706 22,043,581 20,332,421 14,143,597 14,478,096
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty-Eighth Annual General Meeting of INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED 
will be held on Friday, October 6, 2017 at 9:30 a.m. at the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
situated at Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi -75600 (ICAP Auditorium),  to transact the following 
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To approve and declare cash dividend (2016-2017) on the ordinary shares of the Company.  The directors 
have recommended a Final Cash dividend at 350% i.e. Rs 35 per share. This is in addition to the combined 
Interim Dividend of 800% i.e. Rs. 80 per share (First Interim Cash Dividend of 250%, Second Interim Cash 
Dividend of 250% and Third Interim Cash Dividend 300%) already paid.  The total dividend for 2016-2017 
will thus amount to 1,150% i.e. Rs. 115 per share.  

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2018. The present auditors 
M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for 
re-appointment. 

4. To elect Ten directors of the Company as fixed by the Board, for a term of three years commencing from 
October 31, 2017, in accordance with the provisions of Section 159(1) of the Companies Act 2017. The 
retiring Directors are: 

(1) Mr. Ali S. Habib; (2) Mr. Toshiya Azuma; (3) Mr. Ali Asghar Abbas Jamali; (4) Mr. Sadatoshi 
Kashihara; (5) Mr. Hiroyuki Fukui; (6) Mr. Masato Yamanami; (7) Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib;  
(8) Mr. Farhad Zulficar (9) Mr. Azam Faruque and (10) Mr. Parvez Ghias. 

 By order of the Board

Karachi. Muhammad Arif Anzer
August 24, 2017 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from September 30, 2017 to October 6, 
2017 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting and payment of the final 
dividend.

2. Transfer requests  received by the Company’s Share Registrar,  Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited,  CDC House,  99-B, Block “B”, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,  Karachi-74400. 
Tel: 0800-23275, UAN: 111-111-500, Email: info@cdcpak.com at the close of business on September 
29, 2017 will be treated in time for the purpose of determining above entitlement to the transferees for 
payment of final dividend and to attend the Annual General Meeting. 

3. All Members are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting. A Member may appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on behalf of him / her.  Duly completed Proxy forms must be deposited with the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.  

4. Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their registered postal address, if any, to the 
Company’s Share Registrar.  

5. Any persons who seeks to contest the election of Directors shall file with the Company at its registered 
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office not later than 14 days before the above said meeting his / her intention to offer himself/herself 
for the election of the Directors in terms of Section 159(3) of the Companies Act 2017 together with:

(a) Consent to act as Director in Form 28 duly completed as required under Section 167(1) of 
Companies Act 2017;

(b) Declaration in respect of being compliant with the requirements of the Code of Corporate 
Governance and the eligibility criteria as set out in the Companies Act, 2017 to act as Director of 
a listed Company; and

(c) Detailed profile along with office address for placement onto the Company’s website within seven 
(07) days prior to the date of election in terms of SRO dated 10 December 2015.

6. Shareholders are also requested to provide the following information to enable the Company to comply 
with the directives of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 

CDC Account Holders are further required to follow the guidelines mentioned hereinbelow as laid down in 
Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 

A. For attending the meeting:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are 
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his 
identity by showing his original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time 
of attending the meeting. 

ii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature 
of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of meeting. 

B.    For appointing Proxies: 

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are 
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy 
form as per the above requirement. 

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the form. 

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the 
proxy form. 

iv) The proxy shall produce his / her valid original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting. 

v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature 
shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company. 

Submission of copies of CNIC and NTN Certificate (Mandatory)

Pursuant to the directive of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), Dividend 
Warrants shall mandatorily bear the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) numbers of shareholders. 
Shareholders are therefore requested to fulfill the statutory requirements and submit a copy of their CNIC (if 
not already provided) to the Company’s Share Registrar, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, 
without any delay.  
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In case of non-availability of a valid copy of the Shareholders’ CNIC in the records of the Company, the 
company shall withhold the Dividend Warrants in terms of Clause (a) of proviso under Section 243(2) of the 
Companies Act 2017, which will be released by the Share Registrar, only upon submission of a valid copy 
of the CNIC in compliance with the aforesaid SECP directives. 

Withholding Tax on Dividend

Pursuant to the provision of the Finance Act, 2017 effective July 1, 2017 the deduction of withholding tax 
on the amount of dividend paid by the companies under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, 
are as under:

(a) For filers of income tax returns:   15%
(b) For non-filers of income tax returns:  20% 

Shareholders who are filers are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest Active Tax 
Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise they shall be 
treated as non-filers and tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of 20% instead of 15%.

Withholding tax on Dividend in case of Joint Account Holders

In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine shareholding ratio of 
the Joint Account Holder(s) (where shareholding has not been determined by the Principal shareholder) for 
deduction of withholding tax on dividend of the Company, shareholders are requested to please furnish the 
shareholding ratio details of themselves as Principal shareholder and their  Joint Holders , to the Company’s 
Share Registrar, enabling the Company to compute withholding tax of each shareholder accordingly. The 
required information must reach the Company’s Share Registrar by September 29, 2017, otherwise each 
shareholder will be assumed to have equal proportion of shares and the tax will be deducted accordingly.

Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically 

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, dividend payable in cash 
shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders. SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated August 01, 2017, has presently waived this 
condition till October 31, 2017. Any dividend payable after this due date shall be paid in the manner 
prescribed only.

All shareholders are requested to provide the details of their bank mandate specifying: (i) title of account, (ii) 
account number, (iii) IBAN number; (iv) bank name and (v) branch name, code & address, to the Company’s 
Share Registrar M/s. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited. Shareholders who hold shares with 
Participants / Central Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the bank mandate 
details as mentioned above, to the concerned Participant / CDC. 

Distribution of Annual Report through Email (Optional)

SECP vide SRO No. 787(I)/2014 dated 8 September 2014 and under section 223(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2017, the companies are permitted to circulate their annual financial statements, along with auditor’s 
report, directors’ report, chairman’s review report etc. (“Annual Report”) and the notice of annual general 
meeting (“Notice”), to its shareholders by email. Shareholders of the Company, who wish to receive 
the Company’s Annual Report and Notice of annual general meeting by email are requested to provide 
the completed Electronic Communication Consent Form (available on the Company’s website), to the 
Company’s Share Registrar, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited.



Indus Motor Company Ltd.

119Annual Report 2017

Consent for the Facility of video-link
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2017, the company may on the demand of members 
at least 7 days before the general meeting, residing in a city, who hold at least 10% of the total paid up 
capital of the Company, provide the facility of video- link to such members enabling them to participate in 
its annual general meeting.   

If you wish to take benefit of this facility, please fill the form appearing below and submit it to the Company 
at its registered address at least 10 days prior to the date of the meeting.

The Company will intimate members the venue of the video conference facility, if required criteria have 
been fulfilled, at least 7 days before the date of general meeting along with complete information necessary 
to enable them to access such facility.

I/ We __________________________________ of ________________________________ being a member of 
Indus Motor Company Limited, holder of _____________________ ordinary share(s) as per register folio No. / 
CDC Account No. _____________ hereby require the facility of video- link at __________________________, 
to attend the Annual General Meeting on October 6, 2017.

___________________
Signature of Member 

CNIC No. _________________
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I/We __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

of _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

being member(s) of INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED, holder of ____________________________________________

ordinary shares, as per Folio No. / CDC Partcipant ID & A/c No. ______________________ hereby appoint 

Mr./Mrs./Ms.______________________________________________________________ Folio No. / CDC Partcipant 

ID & A/c No. _______________________ of ___________________________________, as my / our proxy in my / our 

absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twenty Eighth Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held on October 06, 2017 and/or any adjournment thereof.

Signed under my / our hand this ____________  day of ____________, 2017. 

Signed in the presence of:
Witness 1 Witness 2

Signature ______________________________________  Signature ______________________________________

Name ___________________________________________  Name ___________________________________________

CNIC / Passport No. _____________________________  CNIC / Passport No. ____________________________

Address _________________________________________   Address _________________________________________

NOTES

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed, must be received at the regesterd office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. 

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he/she himself/herself is a member of the Company, except 
that a corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are deposited 
by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

For CDC Account Holders/Corporate Entities:

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

i. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers 
shall be mentioned on the form.

ii. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished 
with the proxy form.

iii. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.
iv. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen 

signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith proxy form to the 
Company.

Form of Proxy 
Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting

Signature 
(Sign should agree with specimen 

registered with the Co.)

Affix revenue 
stamp of  
Rs 5/-



Registrar, Indus Motor Company Limited 
M/s. Central Depository Company of Pakistan 
Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, S.M.C.H.S., 
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400. 
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Electronic Dividend Mandate Form
Indus Motor Company Limited

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, dividend payable in cash 
shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders. SECP vide Circular No. 18 of 2017 dated August 01, 2017, has presently waived this 
condition till October 31, 2017. Any dividend payable after this due date shall be paid in the manner 
prescribed only.

Shareholders are requested to send the attached Form duly filled and signed, along with attested copy of 
their CNIC to the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC 
House, 99-B, Block-B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. CDC shareholders are requested to 
submit their Dividend Mandate Form and attested copy of CNIC directly to their broker (participant)/CDC.

I hereby communicate to receive my future dividends directly in my Bank account as detailed below:

Name of shareholder  :--------------------------------------------------------------------------

Folio Number/CDC Account No.  : ----------------------------of Indus Motor Company Limited. 

Contact number of shareholder  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

Title of Account  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

IBAN (*)  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

Name of Bank  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

Bank branch  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

Mailing Address of Branch  : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

CNIC No. (attach attested copy) : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

NTN (in case of corporate entity) : --------------------------------------------------------------------------

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge; I shall keep 
the Company informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder’s Signature                     Date

NOTES:

*  Please provide complete IBAN (International Bank Account Number), after checking with your 
concerned Bank branch to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.








